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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Our Businesses are Operated Synergistically with Each Other

Although we report in segments, the Group is operated in a way so that we achieve
synergistic value amongst these segments, in order to generate higher returns and greater
business opportunities. Therefore, while our segments are reported separately for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, our management and
operations frequently view and assess them as one business synergistically with each
other.

A huge one-off impact on the Hong Kong economy during the Current
Year: The 12 Months of the Current Year coincided with almost
unheard-of magnitudes of negative economic impact for many Hong
Kong businesses

As is commonly acknowledged, the 12-month period of the current year ended 30 April
2020 has been a period of hugely negative economic impact for many businesses in Hong
Kong, because it overlapped almost entirely with major social unrest from approximately
June 2019 until approximately January 2020, and then the economic devastation brought
about by Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) since approximately January 2020. Many
Hong Kong businesses have therefore experienced significant loss or significant reduction
in profit, together with significant revenue decrease during this period.

Notwithstanding this huge devastation to the Hong Kong economy,
other than non-Cash Property Valuation, we have achieved turnaround
to Increased Revenue and Profit for 3 Consecutive Years

We are pleased that our business model has enabled us to be nimble and adaptive in
the face of very adverse market conditions. This has benefitted us during the economic
difficulties of the current year.

Excluding the effect of non-cash property valuations, this business strategy has
successfully generated higher revenue and profit for 3 consecutive years. This maintains
our turnaround to profit that commenced during the year ended 30 April 2018, which
continued during the year ended 30 April 2019, and then the current year ended 30 April
2020

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$34.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$34.0 million) and profit for the year of approximately HK$10.2 million
(2019: approximately HK$22.2 million) This continues the Group’s successful record of
profit following its turnaround during the years ended 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2019.

One-off impact upon our Revenue growth

The Group believes that the major social unrest followed by COVID-19 during almost the
entire 12 months of the current year are one-off macro-economic occurrences. The Group
therefore believes that the impact upon its revenue growth during the current year is a
one-off situation.

Reduced Profit during the Current Year is mainly due to last year’s non-
cash Property Valuation gain

The decreased profit for the current year reflects a decrease in fair value of investment
properties, being a non-cash item. Likewise, such higher profit for the year ended 30 April
2019 reflected an increase in the fair value of investment properties that was recorded for
that year.

Excluding non-Cash Property Valuation, we achieved higher Profit
during the Current Year

When such changes in fair value of investment properties, being non-cash items,
are excluded, we are pleased to see that the Group recorded profit for the year of
approximately HK$11.0 million, which is approximately about 1.6 times higher than
that for the year ended 30 April 2019 (2019: approximately HK$6.8 million), continuing
the Group’s turnaround to profit notwithstanding the serious adverse impact of the
unforeseen ongoing large-scale social unrest in Hong Kong and COVID-19 during almost
the entire 12 months of the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRD A

In the face of the economy’s serious drop, we have succeeded in
achieving increased Profit from Technology-related Business, especially
due to our adjusting to new Business and Social Paradigms resulting
from COVID-19: Fintech, Cloud and Virtual Technology

In light of work, travel and social challenges resulting from social unrest and COVID-19,
traditional business demands have been negatively impacted. However, our experience
in fintech, cloud and virtual technologies has strengthened us to meet new business and
social paradigms that resulted from COVID-19. This has therefore enabled us to achieve
approximately similar revenue in the current year as compared to last year, even though
the economy has a whole has greatly suffered. This has also resulted in higher profit after
excluding non-cash property valuation impact.

Our fintech, cloud and virtual technology skill sets covers areas such as education
technology, virtual event technology, and biotech/life sciences technology. We will seek to
pursue more businesses in these newer paradigms of technology post-COVID-19 during
the coming year.

Other areas of our business and experience offer potentially undervalued
investment opportunities at this time

Food & Beverage undervalued opportunities: We have significant experience in food &
beverage operations, and we now see potentially undervalued investment opportunities
in this area as a result of the social unrest and COVID-19. We are therefore seeking to
explore opportunities to extend our business to the food & beverage sector, especially
where we are able to apply our technologies for newer paradigms of food & beverage
operations, and may pursue appropriate investments if we secure favourable terms.

Property undervalued opportunities: We are pleased that we have seen relatively similar
valuation for our investment properties during the current year, instead of valuation
decreases that have been seen in some areas of Hong Kong. We believe that this is
due to our strategy to identify high quality properties and to manage them with high
quality management service. Overall, we seek to explore reducing the weighting of
our properties at the right time and right valuations. At the same time, we will seek to
explore further investment in property where we believe that there are undervalued
opportunities, both in Hong Kong and regionally outside Hong Kong.

Securities reduction of weighting: We have reduced the weighting of our securities
business. The Group recorded gross proceeds from the trading of securities of
approximately HK$38.3 million (2019: approximately HK$58.8 million). The aggregate
of our revenue and such gross proceeds is approximately HK$75.6 million (2019:
approximately HK$94.8 million).

Growth in the face of Overall One-Off Devastating Market Conditions

Amid the ongoing large-scale violent and intensified protests in Hong Kong in during
most of the current year ended 30 April 2020, there inevitably has been significant
impact on market and business sentiment, resulting in very significant economic
downturn. The arrival of this period of social unrest in June 2019, the length of the
period of social unrest, and the continuing escalation and intensification of the violence,
were all unforeseen both by us and by the general market and society as a whole.

This social unrest has seen curbing of property transactions and property values, and
dampening of rental values. The violence has driven away shoppers, diners, tourists
and business travelers, significantly affecting food & beverage consumption, seriously
affecting Hong Kong businesses, and resulting in much reduced interaction. Some
overseas and Hong Kong business associates have taken a “wait and see” approach to
Hong Kong, therefore affecting the revenue and profit that we otherwise would have
wished to be have recorded during the period under review. A number of countries have
issued travel advisories and urged their nationals to exercise increased caution when
travelling to Hong Kong.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

One-off huge negative and unexpected macro impact during the current
year, affecting the Group’s revenue and business performance

The Group believes that the sudden and unexpected impact of the social unrest and
COVID-19 during almost the entire 12 months of the current year has had a significant
one-off impact upon its business, revenue and profit.

Nevertheless, the Group has striven to overcome this one-off impact, to apply its
technology business experience to meet the newer business needs resulting from the
COVID-19 paradigm. The Group believes that the coming year will see growth in revenue
brought about by the Group’s technology business groundwork during the current year
ended 30 April 2020.

Main contributor to revenue and profit — Technology & Management
and new COVID-19 business paradigms

Our main contributor to revenue and profit during the current year has been our
Technology & Management operations. This focuses, amongst others, on many newer
paradigms resulting from COVID-19, e.g., fintech, cloud, distance business and virtual
technologies, providing full one-stop service support to our clients to analyse, design,
develop, operate and maintain integrated e-commerce and other online commercial,
educational and biotech platforms and products. We expect increasing growth in this
sector following the impact of COVID-19. Notwithstanding the unforeseen and violent
social unrest, where many companies have adopted a “wait and see” approach, our
technology & management business recorded revenue of approximately HK$30.7
million (2019: approximately HK$29.7 million) with gain for the year of approximately
HK$23.9 million (2019: profit of approximately HK$21.6 million). As the Group has taken
new initiatives to seek to explore and expand this business following the recent social
unrest and COVID-19, we envisage that the revenue and profit of this business will see
continuing growth during the upcoming year.

Other areas

Our Property operations are managed with a two-pronged approach of value gain and
rental income to optimize value creation for our shareholders. We have continued to
manage our operations by identifying optimal opportunities to acquire, manage and
operate undervalued properties, including (i) commercial properties (retail and offices),
especially in Kowloon East CBD, in line with the government’s CBD 2.0 policy to transform
Kowloon East, (ii) residential properties, especially at prime locations, and (iii) carpark
properties, especially at locations with a low carpark density. These properties are located
at regional locations that we believe are considered to be higher quality for property
demand, primarily in Hong Kong, but also in the PRC and Macau. These properties
are acquired, managed, operated and disposed for both value gain and rental income
strategies. As a result, (a) income from our properties can be from both disposal proceeds
as well as from rental receipts, and (b) fair value loss from our properties are recorded
and contribute towards profit for the year.

Rental income for the year has been fairly steady at approximately HK$4.9 million
(2019: approximately HK$5.1 million). As many property values in Hong Kong have
been seriously affected by the recent social unrest, we are pleased to record only a
very slight decrease in unrealized fair value of investment properties during the year,
being approximately HK$0.8 million decrease (2019: gain of approximately HK$15.3
million). This slight decrease is approximately 0.3% of the HK$246.7 million fair value
of investment properties as at 30 April 2019. We recorded approximately HK$3.4 million
gain for the year in our property business (2019: gain of approximately HK19.6 million),
which includes the non-cash impact on fair value of investment properties. When such
changes in fair value of investment properties are excluded, our property business
recorded stable profit: HK$4.2 million in profit during the year (2019: approximately
HK$4.3 million).

Given market conditions, we believe that the optimum times and values for disposing of
selected properties may be during the coming year, however we also believe that there
would be undervalued opportunities regionally outside Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRD A

Our Financial operations provides financial and management related services,
including to clients with cross-border expansion or activities in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Korea. During the year, we recorded revenue of approximately HK$1.1 million (2019:
approximately HK$0.7 million), resulting in profit of approximately HK$0.4 million (2019:
loss of approximately HK$0.4 million). We are currently seeking opportunities to increase
the weighting in this business, especially in relation to clients where we will contribute a
combination of our financial & management, and technology & management services.

We have been reducing the weighting of our Securities operations, which invest in a
diversified portfolio of securities that are listed on recognised stock exchanges with a
potential for earnings growth and capital appreciation. Our strategy is to generate and
preserve shareholder value, and we do so by adopting a prudent investment policy to
invest in securities that have long-term growth potential. We recorded revenue from
this business, including net realised and unrealised loss of securities, of approximately
HK$2.6 million (2019: loss of approximately HK$1.6 million).

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the risk of negative, volatile or of uncertain developments,
including but not limited to negative, volatile or uncertain developments in the global,
regional and local economies, in the financial and property markets, and in the changes
in patterns of consumption. These developments might reduce revenue or result in
reduced valuations of the Group’s investment properties or in the Group being unable
to meet its strategic objectives or in negative effect to its financial condition, results
of operations and businesses. The Company will continue to adopt prudent financial
policies to cope with the impact of uncertain factors.

FUND RAISING EXERCISES
The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity during the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group had the following significant investment of carrying value of 5% or more of
the total assets as at 30 April 2020:

Claman Global Limited (“Claman”) is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability. Claman and its subsidiary are engaged in the financial technology
industry including in relation to crowdfunding and technologies and services that
seek to increase the efficiency of online financial transactions. On 26 September 2016,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Vongroup Investment Holdings Limited
(“VIHL"), entered into a subscription agreement with Claman, pursuant to which VIHL
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and Claman conditionally agreed to issue and allot
29% of the issued share capital of Claman (approximately 22.48% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Claman) at the consideration of HK$29,000,000, which was satisfied by
allotting and issuing 23,349,436 shares of the Company at the issue price of HK$1.242 per
share. Currently, the Group is engaged in discussions in relation to a potential transaction
with a view to increase its shareholding in Claman. No agreement has been reached as to
the terms of the possible investment up to the date of this report. Further details of the
above are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 September 2016 and 8 July
2020.

As at 30 April 2020, the carrying value of Claman as financial assets at FVOCI of the Group
was approximately HK$23.8 million (2019: approximately HK$23.5 million). For the year
ended 30 April 2020, a fair value gain of approximately HK$0.3 million (2019: a fair
value loss of approximately HK$15.5 million) was recognised in financial assets at FVOCI
reserve.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and bank balances as at 30 April 2020 amounting to
approximately HK$19.6 million (2019: approximately HK$34.4 million). The Group’s
current ratio as at 30 April 2020 was 4.2 (2019: 3.9). The total equity of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$391.7 million (2019: approximately HK$383.1 million) as
at 30 April 2020.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.06 as at 30 April
2020 (2019: 0.07).

Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group’s assets, liabilities and cash flow from operations are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does not
have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the Company monitors its foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedges should the need arise.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated resources and bank
borrowings. The interest rates of borrowings, if applicable, are generally charged by
reference to prevailing market rates.

As at 30 April 2020, there were bank borrowings, which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, of approximately HK$24.3 million (2019: approximately HK$26.3 million). All
bank borrowings were subject to interest rate of 0.7%-1.5% per annum over 1-month
to 3-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.45%-2.7% per annum below prime rate. The bank
borrowings that are not repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period
but contains a repayment on demand clause and therefore all bank borrowings were
classified into current liabilities of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 April 2020, the Group did not have any material contingent liability (2019: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings are secured and guaranteed by
investment properties of the Group with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately HK$121.3 million (2019: approximately HK$121.1 million) and leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately HK$11.6
million (2019: approximately HK$12.0 million).

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2019: nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2020, the Group had 30 (2019: 19) employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices. Its staff benefits, welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if
any, are made in accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of
its operating entities.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

One-off negative economic impact during the current year ended 30
April 2020

We are delighted that with our continued successful generation of profit for the year,
following on from our turnaround during the year ended 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2019,
we believe that we are well-positioned for continued future growth, notwithstanding that
we would have wished for substantially higher revenue and profit if it were not for the
huge economic downturn brought on by the unforeseen and violent social unrest and
COVID-19 during almost the entire 12 months of the current year. We believe that this is a
one-off negative impact.

We have witnessed new COVID-19 business paradigm demands for our
technology expertise

We also believe that our ability to generate higher profit, after excluding non-cash
property valuation impact, during the current year is in no small part due to the way
that we operate synergistic operations, with management and operational staff who have
significant experience in inter-disciplinary business management and operations. Also,
we attribute this to the way that our technology business has significant experience in
fintech, cloud and virtual technologies, and distance business, which all now and are
expected to continue to be in significant demand in the new COVID-19 business and
social paradigm.

Undervalued Acquisition Opportunities

The Group is pursuing a strategy of pursuing a number of projects where asset values are
favourable, and where our experience and expertise would bring added value, and also
which would enable us to comfortably develop and grow our businesses in the uncertain
times ahead. This includes undervalued opportunities in regional property as well as in
food & beverage.

This might not be the time for a single-product focus

We believe that it is during these difficult times that the experience and expertise of our
management will be demonstrated, and that we are well-positioned for continued future
growth, notwithstanding the uncertainties presented in the global and local business
environment, including current trade wars and recent social unrest in Hong Kong. We
believe that this might not be the time for a traditional single-product business to focus
on one product and not diversify to hedge against fluctuating market conditions and
demands resulting from COVID-19.

Business growth opportunities in EdTech, BioTech, Virtual Tech, FinTech
and CloudTech

In our technology & management operations, we are very excited to see that we have
succeeded in technology business needs brought about by COVID-19. We will actively seek
to continue to put resources into these operations to aim to generate higher revenue
and profit during the coming year. We would have wished for higher revenue and profit
during the year were it not for the economic downturn brought about by the unforeseen
and violent social unrest and COVID-19. However, nimble adaptation to distance
business, education technology, and virtual and cloud technology has enabled us to step
up to maintain approximately similar levels of revenue, and higher profit excluding non-
cash property valuation impact. We seek to continue and grow upon this in the coming
year.

Property

In our property operations, we will continue to closely monitor the market and
determine the optimum times for reducing our weighting in Hong Kong. Our properties
are generally not located at or near the hotspots of social unrest, therefore their values
have not been significantly affected. Our gearing ratio on all properties is currently
relatively low and highly conservative, with bank borrowing to property value ratio
of only approximately 9.5% (30 April 2019: approximately 10.2%), representing only
approximately HK$24.3 million of bank borrowings (30 April 2019: approximately
HK$26.3 million), as compared with the aggregate of investment property value
and property held for own use of approximately HK$257.0 million (30 April 2019:
approximately HK$258.7 million). Our gearing ratio against total equity is approximately
6% (30 April 2019: approximately 7%). Therefore, we intend during the coming year to
take advantage of currently low interest rates to cautiously increase our gearing ratio
within prudent levels. We also intend to explore regional undervalued opportunities.
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Executive Directors

Vong Tat leong David, aged 58, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and serves
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr Vong has acquired and run public companies, and made and advised
on cross-border financial transactions and mergers and acquisitions, involving capital
markets and private equity, for over 25 years. He was formerly Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
from 2003-2004. Before that, he was director and Deputy Chief Executive of i100 Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since he co-founded the i100 Group in 2000
with an international consortium whose key participants included management and
leading institutional investors. Prior to that, he was Chief Executive at Pollon Infrastructure
Corporation, an infrastructure investment holding company focused on power and telecom
assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is a graduate of Yale Law School and The London
School of Economics and Political Science.

Xu Siping, aged 62, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and held a series
of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRCs State Economic and Trade
Commission and the National Development and Reform Commission (formerly the State
Planning Commission), from 1983-2000, before retiring from public service in the central
government. Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fung Ka Keung David, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2005. He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Dr. Lee G. LAM, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2005. He holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc in Systems Science and
an MBA from the University of Ottawa in Canada, an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in Law from the University of Wolverhampton in
the UK, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong Kong. He is also a Solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong (and formerly a member of the Hong Kong Bar), an Accredited
Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of Certified Management
Accountants (CMA) Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and an Honorary Fellow of Certified Public Accountants (CPA)
Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management, and the University of Hong Kong
School of Professional and Continuing Education. In 2019, Dr. Lam was awarded a Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Dr. Lam is Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, and Non-
Executive Chairman — Greater China and ASEAN Region of Macquarie Infrastructure and
Real Assets. Actively participating in community service, he is a member of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government's Committee on Innovation, Technology
and Re-Industrialisation, of and the Court of the City University of Hong Kong, Convenor
of the Panel of Advisors on Building Management Disputes of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government Home Affairs Department, President of the United
Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN ESCAP) Sustainable
Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council and Chairman of its Task Force on Banking and
Finance, Vice Chairman of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC), and a member of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Belt and Road and Greater Bay Area Committee and
the Sir Murray MacLehose Trust Fund Investment Advisory Committee. Dr. Lam is Chairman
of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a member of the
Company’s Nomination Committee.

Dr. Lam is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8148), CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), Elife Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 223), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (Stock code: 337), Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 6837, 600837 on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Hang Pin
Living Technology Company Limited (Stock Code: 1682, fka Hua Long Jin Kong Company
Limited), Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 2277), Kidsland
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2122) and Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 391). He is a Non-executive Director of China LNG Group Limited (Stock Code:
931), National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 8228), Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 188), Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited
(Stock Code: 455) and Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited (Stock Code: 846, re-
designated from independent non-executive director on 23 April 2020) and the shares of all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Lam is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China Real Estate Grp Ltd (Stock
code: 5RA, fka Asia-Pacific Strategic Investments Limited), Beverly JCG Limited (Stock code:
VFP, fka JCG Investment Holdings Ltd.), Thomson Medical Group Limited (Stock Code: A50),
Top Global Limited (Stock code: BHO), and Singapore eDevelopment Limited (Stock code:
40V, re-designated from non-executive director on 2 July 2020) all of which are listed
companies on the Singapore Exchange. Dr. Lam is an Independent Non-executive Director
of Sunwah International Limited (Stock code: SWH) whose shares are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, AustChina Holdings Limited (Stock code: AUH) whose shares are listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange and TMC Life Sciences Berhad (Stock code: 0101) whose
shares are listed on the Bursa Malaysia, and a Non-executive Director of Adamas Finance
Asia Limited (Stock code: ADAM) whose shares are listed on the London Securities Exchange.

In the past three years, Dr. Lam was a non-executive director of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 412), Green Leader Holdings Group Limited (Stock
Code: 0061 which he was appointed in June 2019 and resigned in July 2019) and Roma
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072), and an independent non-executive director of each of
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 404) whose shares were delisted on the
Stock Exchange in December 2019, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited (Stock Code: 393),
Xi'an Haitiantian Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 8227), all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange; and an independent non-executive director of Rowsley Ltd. (Stock Code: A50), a
company listed on Singapore Exchange, and Vietnam Equity Holding (Stock Code: 3MS), a
company listed on Stuttgart Stock Exchange.

Wong Man Ngar Edna, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at Informa Markets, Advisory Board Member at
Impact Investment Exchange, and was formerly Regional Marketing Manager at American
Express, and Management Consultant at The Mitchell Madison Group in New York. She is a
graduate of Columbia Business School and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial statements
of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
30 April 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Group comprise technology & management businesses, financial services businesses,
property businesses and securities businesses.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars of important events
affecting the Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 3 to 8 of this report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for the year
ended 30 April 2020 is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 April 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 30 of this report.
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend payment of final
dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page
91.

Donations

No donation was made by the Group during the year (2019: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s properties are set out on page 92.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 April 2020.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 32 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$279.0 million. This includes the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of approximately HK$611.8 million as at 30 April 2020, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Company’s capital
redemption reserve in the amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Company did not take out insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors because it is believed that this legal risk to
the Directors is quite low.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme as set out in this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers and the largest customer of the
Group accounted for 73% and 17% of the total Group’s revenue for the year respectively.

These customers are mainly from the Group’s technology & management segment.

This segment includes traditional business demands as well as newer business demands
in the Hong Kong economy, which is currently going through a transitional period, to
address new business and social paradigms that result from the COVID-19 environment.
These newer business demands include online education technology, distance business,
and other virtual event technology.

As a result of the Group’s experience in fintech, cloud and virtual technologies having
been strengthened during past few years, the Group has been able to transition towards
these newer business demands with larger projects during the year. Typically, there is no
reliance on any single customer in the long run. Instead, the Group’s business seeks to
grow by securing new customers and new projects.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
total Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers and suppliers.

Commitments

The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2019: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, there is no other
significate events occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Vong Tat leong David
Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:

Fung Ka Keung David
LAM Lee G.
Wong Man Ngar Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Xu Siping and Lee
G. Lam will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Vong Tat leong David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until
terminated by mutual consent.

Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group commencing on
3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual
consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 30 April 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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E=gRs
Interests in the Shares of the Company RAEQTRG 2R
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
EEpnA 14 RoER BARERE S
Vong Tat leong David Held through a controlled corporation (note) 99,050,000 (L) 51.54%

miES FRATERIME R ()
Remark: (L): long position

- EEaR (NI s =y

Note: The shares were held by Vongroup Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by Vong Tat leong
David.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them or
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 30 April 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximate

percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity Interest in shares shareholding

REREH 513 R BARBRESE

Vongroup Holdings Limited (note) Beneficial owner 99,050,000 (L) 51.54%
(K1zE) BamlEBA

Claman Global Limited Beneficial owner 23,349,436 (L) 12.15%
BEmfBA

Remark: (L): long position

=N (N =)
Note: Vongroup Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Vong Tat leong David.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011 (the “New
Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the Company, at their discretion,
may grant options to Directors, officers and employees (whether full time or part-time)
of the Company or a subsidiary and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers,
sub-contractors or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. No
share options were outstanding nor granted during the year ended 30 April 2020.
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Emolument Policies

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is based on their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market rates, workload and
responsibilities and general economic situation. The Group’s employee benefits include
performance bonus, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong employees and social
insurance packages for the PRC employees.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year ended 30 April
2020, which also constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (‘CG Code) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditors

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company on 26 June
2020 and Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company on 26 June 2020.
Save as aforesaid, there has been no change in auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2020
have been audited by Mazars CPA Limited, who was first appointed by the Directors
as the auditors of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2020 and will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Vong Tat leong David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 August 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the quality of corporate
governance so to ensure better transparency of the Company, protection of shareholders’
and stakeholders’ rights and enhance shareholder value.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
(G Code and periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code, except for the deviation from code
provisions A.1.8, A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against its directors. However, the Company did not take out
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year ended 30
April 2020 because it is believed that this legal risk to the Directors is quite low.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
should be performed by different individuals. Since September 2005, Vong Tat leong
David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out the responsibilities
of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present structure is more
suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow
for more efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years as specified in the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There are
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company; they were unable to attend
the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2019 due to
their engagement with their other commitments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 April 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 30 April 2020, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five members: two
executive Directors, namely Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) and Xu
Siping; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Lee G. Lam, who has the
professional and accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Fung Ka Keung
David and Wong Man Ngar Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on page 9 of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Attendance Record at meetings

The Board held 4 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2020 and additional
Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors who cannot attend in
person might participate through other electronic means of communications. Due notice
and relevant materials for the meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

FAREARAR FR2020
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TEERKRE
B8 (#&)

ESHEERRE
EFERHE_S_SFNA-THIEFERNBTOAES
ggH MRAUFERAIGHEIBTEFTESE Regwat
ErEREBAMEFBALTRL2HE  REARQT 2 A

ERMAINGEERTR ARRRNEHACOERERS
HIEABALEBEN - TRFIVERES Z HFEFT

Attended/Held

SHE TETER
Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Audit Committee General
Board meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting*
Members of the Board EEgRE EEEgE FHZEeERE REEZE88ER BRZEEgR BRERAE*
VONG Tat leong David =iES 4/4 11 il - 11
XU Siping TRETT 4/4 - - - 0/1
FUNG Ka Keung David 5 3/4 11 11 2/2 0/1
LAM Lee G. MKIE 4/4 11 11 2/2 0/1
WONG Man Ngar Edna T 4/4 - - 2/2 0/1
*  Being the annual general meeting held on 30 September 2019. AR ZE-NFAAZSTRRTZRRBEFAE -
Roles and Functions A=Y S8 =

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business development.
The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues and valuate the financial
performance of the Group. The Board will consider and approve acquisition and disposal,
remuneration policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, connected transactions,
placing and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. Control and day to day operation of the Company is delegated
to the CEO and the management of the Company.

Induction and Continuing Development For Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training programmes at
the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

During the year, the Directors including Mr. Vong Tat leong David, Xu Siping, Fung Ka
Keung David, Lee G. Lam and Wong Man Ngar Edna, were provided with regular updates
on the Group’s business and operations and have complied with the code provision A.6.5
of the Code on continuous professional development by participating in appropriate
trainings and seminars and reading Listing Rules, updates, articles and/or materials etc.
as appropriate.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Vong Tat leong David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out
the responsibilities of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present
structure is more suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent
leadership and allow for more efficient formulation and implementation of the
Company’s development strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes, including the separation of the
roles of Chairman and CEO, are necessary.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, and the terms of their appointment will be reviewed when they are due
for re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, currently, Lee G. Lam (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Fung Ka Keung
David and Wong Man Ngar Edna. The Audit Committee members performed their duties
within written terms of reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships between the
Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of non-audit services),
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, any issues arising from
the audit and any other auditors may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal
control and risk management.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements for the
year ended 30 April 2019 and for the six months ended 31 October 2019, considered
and approved the audit work of the auditors and reviewed the business and financial
performance of the Company and the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2020 have been reviewed by the
Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lee G. Lam (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Fung Ka Keung
David, and one executive Director, Vong Tat leong David. The Remuneration Committee
members performed their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The principle role of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and
approved the remuneration of the Directors. No executive Director has taken part in any
discussion about his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration of Directors according to their respective responsibilities, expertise and
performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lee G. Lam and Fung Ka Keung David and one executive Director, Vong Tat
leong David (Chairman of the Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee
members performed their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Company and CEO.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

According to the board diversity policy, board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc. The responsibilities and authority
for selection and appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination Committee
but the ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors of the
Company rests with the entire Board. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee will also consider recommendations for
candidates made by shareholders of the Company. Regular reviews will be conducted
by the Nomination Committee on the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance rate of
100%.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Audit Committee is responsible to help the Board for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

* to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board;

» to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management;

*  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with all legal
and regulatory requirements;

* to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

e to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees for audit services and non-audit services, in relation to participation in
the annual general meeting and report on agreement with the preliminary results
announcement, payable to Mazars CPA Limited (2019: HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited) for the year ended 30 April 2020 are HK$600,000 (2019: HK$650,000) and
HK$100,000 (2019: Nil), respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing consolidated financial
statements for the financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group’s results and its cash flows.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report to this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to identify, control impact of the
identified risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures.

During the year, the Company has adopted and reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management procedures which include the policies, procedures,
monitoring and communication activities and standard of behaviour established for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The risk management
and internal control systems of the Company aim to help achieving the Group’s business
objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information. However, the design of the systems are to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure
when business objectives are being sought.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks by the Group are
summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

» Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment

*  Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by the
management; and

«  Considers the impact and consequence on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response

*  Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

* Determines the risk management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

*  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate
internal control processes are in place;

*  Revises the risk management strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and

*  Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the internal auditor who reports
directly to the Audit Committee. Internal auditor plays an important part in the
assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and reports directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material controls and compliance with
policies and procedures of the Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies
identified. The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his recommendations by
operations management and reports the outcomes to the Audit Committee.

Based on its assessment which covers all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions, the Board
believes that for the year ended 30 April 2020, the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems are effective and adequate. The Board is satisfied that there
are adequate resources of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient training and budget have
been provided.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Tsui Siu Hung Raymond, the secretary of the Company, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 30
April 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividends may be declared from time to time by the Company to its shareholders. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend pay-out ratio. The declaration and
payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion of the Board after taking
into account, among others, the general financial condition of the Group, the capital
and debt level of the Group, the future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs, the general market
conditions and any other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the all applicable laws,
rule and regulations and the articles of association of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles 58 of the Articles of the Company, an EGM can be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2)  Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

However, shareholders are requested to follow Article 88 of the Articles of the
Company for including a resolution at any general meeting. Pursuant to Article
88 of the Articles of the Company, no person other than a retiring Director shall,
unless recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing by a Member (not
being the person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the office or head office of the Company at least seven days
before the date of the general meeting, such period for lodgment of the notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such meeting provided that such period shall be at least seven days.

3) Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send requisitions and requests to the Board or the secretary of the
Company in written form to the principal place of business of the Company at 17A,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 30 April 2020, there was no change to the articles of association
of the Company. The Company has posted its articles of association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present this report in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 and
the requirements set out in Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules. The report describes the
Company’s policies that were designed to fulfill the Company’s obligations with respect
to sustainable development and social responsibilities areas, as required by the ESG
Guide. This report covers the operational information, which includes data and activities
of the Group’s head offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, and its reporting period covers
the period from 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2020 (the “Reporting Period”). The Group will
illustrate and highlight its efforts and performance in both environmental and social
aspects for the Group’s business operations in this report. In respect of the corporate
governance practices of the Company, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of this report.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Overview

We know that the quality of environmental protection procedures is very important
to achievement of long-term success of our Company. Our priority is to protect the
environment and our target is to minimise adverse impact on the environment by
adopting world class environmental protection practices in our operational activities.

We do our best to ensure that the concept of environmental sustainability is
integrated into every part of our daily business operations.

We keep on monitoring all types of changes in the ways of producing waste and/
or utilising energy during the process of carrying on our business activities with the
aim of mitigating any unfavourable impact of our operations on the environment.
We continually review and update our ESG policies, if applicable, to ensure that
there is a balance between sustainable corporate development and environmental
protection.

It is often our great desire to minimise the negative impact of our operational
activities on the environment by improving energy efficiency, reducing all kinds of
waste and supporting education as to environmental protection.

Emissions

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. It actively
implements multiple measures for environmental protection in its operations and
formulates various management policies to reduce emissions.

While the main business of the Group is not production, its operations do not impose
much impact on water, land or air by way of greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and/or generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
We do not produce any hazardous waste and we strive to minimise volume of non-
hazardous waste that we produce during the course of our daily operations. Our
greenhouse gases emissions are indirectly, principally resulting from electricity
consumed at the Company’s workplace as well as from business travel by employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not generate any significant hazardous
waste during its operations. Therefore, no relevant internal regulations have been
formulated.

Use of resources

The Group encourages the reduction of energy consumption. Energy saving light
bulbs and LED lighting systems are used in all offices of the Group. The Group
encourages making use of natural daylight and refrain from turning on unnecessary
lights during daytime. Meanwhile, rules on energy saving are implemented to ensure
that all equipment and lights of conference rooms are turned off when they are not
in use. Equipment and office machinery including but not limited to computers,
printers and photocopiers are to be switched to sleep mode immediately after use.
Employees are required to turn off lights and computers before leaving the office.
Energy saving devices are installed to reduce consumption of electricity and water
after office hours. The total electricity energy consumption during the Reporting
Period was 40,621 KWh (2019: 41,125 KWh).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

B

Use of resources (Continued)

We try our best to avoid unnecessary wastage of paper and promote effective
usage of paper. In our daily operations, we maximise usage of e-versions instead of
hardcopies wherever it is possible. We encourage our staff to work more effectively
in a paperless environment. In case there is still a need for printing, we make use
of double-sided printing generally, and reuse the recycled paper with one side of
it already used for those documents used internally. The total paper consumption
during the Reporting Period was 324 kg (2019: 281 kg).

Meanwhile, the Group also adopts policy to reduce the use of disposable
consumables, such as disposable cutlery and plastic bottled water. Measures to
promote separation of waste for reuse and recycle are in place pursuant to which
certain consumables of photocopiers and printers such as cartridges and toners,
waste paper that cannot be reused and discarded computers are to be separated
from other daily solid waste for recycling.

SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment

As at 30 April 2020, the total number of employees being employed by the Group
was 30 (2019: 19). The Group understands that human resource is one of its most
valuable assets, the provision of a stimulating and harmonious working environment
can improve the sense of belongings to its employees. Employees and Directors
are remunerated based on their educational qualifications, industry experience,
performance, current industry practices and prevailing market conditions and
in accordance with pertinent labour laws and regulations. Apart from the basic
package, for instance, severance payment, mandatory provident fund, employment
compensation insurance, annual leaves, sick leaves, additional remuneration and
benefits such as performance-based bonuses and other staff welfare benefits are
provided.

Health and Safety

Our Company complies with the relevant laws and regulations regarding industrial
safety, hygiene and health and other caring arrangements for employees. The
Company’s business operations do not involve any high-risk work activities that
could lead to serious industrial events or occupational health problems. We care
about our staff members’ health and safety. In this respect, the Company provides
relevant updates of occupational safety and health to its employees by means of
leaflets and training courses which are conducted by the Labour Department. During
the year, there was no case of injuries reported.

Development and Training

The Group encourages lifelong learning and offer trainings to its employees to
enhance their performance and to provide support to their personal development.
The objective of the Group’s human resource management is to reward and
recognise performing staff by a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, salaries and wages are reviewed annually based on
performance appraisals, qualifications, experience, position and seniority.

Labour Standard

The Group’s recruitment management system measures clearly on the staff’s age
requirement. Review and verification of applicant’s identity information is required
during the recruitment process, and recruitment of child labor is strictly prohibited.
Applicant is also required to provide document proofs of academic qualifications
and working experience for verifications, applicant who is suspected to have false
academic qualifications and working experience will not be employed. The Group
provides its staff with a safe, health, comfortable working environment with
labor protection, reasonable remuneration and various welfare. The Group enters
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and has strictly complied with such laws
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
(B) SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

It is the Group’s policy to undertake procurement so as to advance our economic,
environmental and social objectives. New suppliers will be assessed and their
products will be evaluated before engagement. Preference will be given to socially
responsible entities, energy efficient equipment and environmental friendly
products. Ongoing quality monitoring and supervision is in place to ensure
procurements are conducted specific to the Group’s requirement.

Product responsibility

The quality of the product is very important to the Group. The Group has establishes
various communication channels including company’s website, e-mail and telephone
for customers to give their feedback to the Group. Customer’s satisfaction will
become the driving force for the Group to increase the quality of the product. Also,
the Group respects the privacy of the customer, protecting customer’s and supplier’s
data and privacy of client information. They are kept in confidentiality and destroyed
in accordance with the Group’s policy on document retention.

Anti-corruption and Anti-Fraud

The Company maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery in any form. We encourage the
reporting of suspected business irregularities and provide clear channels specifically
for this purpose. When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of
duty, abuse of power, receiving bribes, staff should report for investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator and/or to law enforcement authority when
necessary.

Community Investment

Although the Group was not involved in charity or community events during
the reporting period, it is committed to conducting business without making
any potential environmental and social impact to its stakeholders especially
its employees and the community members. The Company often explores the
opportunities of incorporating environmental and social elements into its
investment decisions and operational management, with reference to best practices
in the industry and internationally recognised ESG standards.
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To the members of Vongroup Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to 90, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 April 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2020, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

MRETSR

BREEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMWESNAEERESESE

Fair value of investment properties

REWEZ R FE

Refer to Notes 2 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI BHREN F2R%12 -

The Group’s investment properties were measured at fair value of
approximately HK$245,428,000 as at 30 April 2020.
RZEZTFMA=+H" EENEBEEMERATED
245,428,000/ JLAT £ ©

The management of the Group has estimated the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties based on independent external
valuations. These valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that required significant management judgement,
including market unit value of comparable properties, premium or
discount adjustments to these market values for factors specific to
the characteristics of the Group’s investment properties compared
to recent sales on the comparable transactions and assuming the
investment properties are capable of being sold in existing status.

SEEEEDERBELIIMNBEEMR BEEBEAMENAT
ﬁ ZEMEERBE THRESR TEEEBELERAE  21E
AALBYENTSECER HE BESERENEFNES
mliﬁm% BEEHMMELLATELBRR FM BT EAE

WRBRIREMEIRB R E

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter because
the valuation of the investment properties, which are material,
involved significant judgements and estimates including the
determination of valuation techniques and the selection of different
inputs in the models.

BMEK L EBERE-—HEREREETFE REAREMEM
BEEEX PREXRAB KRG BEGERMN BT RER S
TR AN EE 2 EE -

Our procedures, among others, included:

HAWEFEE(EFeR):

evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and competence of the independent
professional valuer;

FHEE Y BEGEM s BB g8 KBTI

reviewing the valuation report from the independent professional valuer and
discussing with management of the Group and the valuer to understand the
valuation basis and methodology used, underlying assumptions applied and
critical judgements used in the valuation of investment properties; and

EHBEVEEGEMZEHERENRE SEEEEERAEMSRKE
WMERMEMAZSEEERIDE A HBRR LR : &

checking, on a sample basis, the underlying data including comparable of
market transactions being used by the independent professional valuer and
assessing the appropriateness.
S EARE  BEES
HEEE-

VEXGEMARZAIELRMISERS  WaF
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Key audit matters

WMREITSR
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BREEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMWENAEERREETSE

Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment on account receivables, loan receivables and deposits and other receivables

YRS EREFREZREMERNBEZRAEERRE ([ BREEER)RE

Refer to Notes 2, 17, 18, 19 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRI A EREN 2 17 18 ~ 19529 °

As at 30 April 2020, the Group had account receivables, loan
receivables and deposits and other receivables (net of loss allowance
for ECL) of approximately HK$38,014,000, HK$28,476,000 and
HK$46,149,000, respectively. The loss allowance for ECL on account a)
receivables, loan receivables and deposits and other receivables

were approximately HK$5,836,000, HK$1,978,000 and HK$7,263,000,
respectively, as at 30 April 2020. a)
RZZE_THENA=1+H EBEEEZEKEFR BREXRK
ZeRAMEUGFEBE(HNREREESBZEBEEREB) DO A
38,014,0007% JT * 28,476,000 JC £246,149,0008 L e R =T =ZF  h)
FUA=1+H BUWER BRERRZES REMERZIEZE
HEEBBZBEEES B4 5583600857 - 1,978,000 TTR b
7,263,000/ 7T ©

The management of the Group performed periodic assessment on

the recoverability of the account receivables, loan receivables and
deposits and other receivables and the sufficiency of provision 0
for loss allowance for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different debtors, ageing of the account receivables,

loan receivables and deposits and other receivables, historical d)
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing

and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant debtors. The management

of the Group also considered forward-looking information that may
impact the debtors’ ability to repay the outstanding balances in
order to estimate the ECL for the loss allowance for ECL assessment. d)
The Group engaged an independent professional valuer for ECL
assessment on account receivables, loan receivables and deposits

and other receivables.
EXEERERBEEAZEEMRR  BUER BRERRIEZ
eRAMBERRIE 2 RR BTEERE RELEKRR KRE o
BEBEREHSELSEUREBEBAZREZE M E
LERTE R A EKART  BIE R RIZS & H M FEURIE 2 7]
WEMEEREEBE BEREEBEz TR BEXEHEREE o
MERMEMER ZEEAHALSTEEBABREREERT
2R URTEBE S BEAEERE  MMERBEEBEN

e BEEEZBEBUEEAEMEBUERT BEEREE:R )
H fth [l W FOE VETE BRI BB 1R AT A o

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter because f)
of its significance to the consolidated financial statements and the
subjective judgements made by the management of the Group over
assessing the credit standing of the Group’s debtors and therefore

the estimation of ECL of account receivables, loan receivables and
deposits and other receivables.

HMEB R EEEE—HAREAFE RESEHERSVE
WEZEZMUR BEEEERENTH BEEEBAZEER
ARSI B U 5 FE AR R~ PE LR B R I 4R < Tk L LA SR TR B 4

I o

Our procedures, among others, included:

HPWEFEE(EReRE):

obtaining and understanding of the Group’s credit risk management and
practices, and assessing the Group’s impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of applicable accounting standards;
ESRER BESEEERREEREH CREEAGTELTNE &
SEERERBECE

evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and competence of the independent
professional valuer;

B B EM 2 FEN N JEEN

assessing the application of impairment methodology of ECL, and checking the
assumptions and key parameters to external data sources where available, on a
sample basis;
FHETEEEEEBEBRER A ZER  REEIER T HEREIINBERIR
ZRE LR

inquiring of management of the Group for the status of each of the material
account receivables, loan receivables and deposits and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations from management of the
Group with supporting evidence, such as understanding ongoing business
relationship with the debtors based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondences with the debtors;
HBEERNF4 HEBIRIERR  BIKRE T R iR e & E M EKFRIE 2 AR
ARZIFHEBREE BESEERECHME(WNREEITHTHRERKA
ZREEBRE REEHANBEREEEERSAREEBB AR
ERGEHR)FR BEREEERE:

assessing the reasonableness and relevancy of the external information used
by the Group as the forward-looking information including economic data and
forecasts published by government bodies and monetary authorities; and

FHE BEEERERNREER 2INPER 2 & B AN - BIEBUTH
BREEERBM BB REN &

checking the accuracy of the calculation of ECL based on the methodology
adopted by the Group and the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in relation to
credit risk exposed by the Group in the consolidated financial statements.
BERE BEEMRMzTEAEZEREEFBRZERE K EX
ERGalBHikANER BSREMEREERRZRE 2 ERYT -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s 2020 annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 August 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate Number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeBERkEMREKER
YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z-ZFNA=tHLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mfat FERT FAT
Revenue Wz 4 34,023 33,953
Other revenue Hib Yz 5 1,115 1,085
Other gains HmZEF 5 5 5
Staff costs BIRA 6 (5,105) (6,971)
Expenses recognised under short-term leases REHERETHER MY (651) (644)
Depreciation e 11 (771) (773)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR R EAMEERY (15,819) (14,398)
Net impairment losses recognised in respect of financial — FLIZE$EAX AT B 2 £ BB EHER 2 RE
assets at amortised cost [E5 18558 (1,337) (4,679)
Change in fair value of investment properties WEWMEZ AN FEZE) 12 (761) 15,320
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value FRBEFEATEIR(EREREATE
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) RNz eREEL AT EE 15(b) (100) -
Finance costs BA SRR AR 6 (679) (640)
Profit before income tax BR P S 8 A F 6 9,920 22,258
Income tax credit (expense) FEEiEe(FAX) 7 298 (98)
Profit for the year REERR 10,218 22,160
Other comprehensive loss for the year AEEHMEHEEE
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss Rt TeE B2 BRn o HE
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value FREMEERAZATER(EBEA
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") 2EBRARATENNER ] SREEY
NEEEH 30 (331) (15,861)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss E & AJfEEF 7 1EF 1575 2 TH H
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations #aZ G HNEFEEE 4 7 B X, =58 (1,313) (1,551)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax N EEH 2 HEEAE  HIKRBE (1,644) (17,412)
Total comprehensive income for the year AAREEAREFAZEBALLE
attributable to owners of the Company 8,574 4,748
HK cents HK cents
=211 Al
Earnings per share SREF 10
Basic and diluted AR NS 5.32 11.53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRE

AS AT 30 APRIL 2020
R-B-Z2FNA=1+H

2020 2019
S —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MieE FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE BB KRB 11 12,334 13,092
Investment properties wEYE 12 245,428 246,697
Goodwill S 13 - -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant MEEYE BMELRESMZ2EE
and equipment - 364
Financial assets at FVOCI FREMEEABAZAFEYR 2 EHEE 14 23,808 24,139
Financial assets at FVPL EREBEREATFEIREZEREE 15 1,550 1,650
283,120 285,942
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at FVPL FREREATEIR, SREE 15 11,303 8,274
Forfeited collaterals held for sale FERRUIEE R 16 289 723
Account receivables FE U BR X 17 38,014 33,641
Loan receivables EWE 18 28,476 9,957
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & BRI H AR 19 46,228 45,200
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRR S 20 19,600 34,434
143,910 132,229
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and deposits received JERTRIB R E UL S 21 9,686 7,075
Bank borrowings SRITEE 22 24,267 26,295
Tax payables FEBIIE 567 829
34,520 34,199
Net current assets REBEEFE 109,390 98,030
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBDEE 392,510 383,972
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 23 860 896
NET ASSETS EEFE 391,650 383,076
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital &% 2 24 7,688 7,688
Reserves HiE 383,962 375,388
TOTAL EQUITY wmER 391,650 383,076
These consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 90 were approved and authorised ~— 308 ZE908 24 A EHRACHEES R —FE - FF )|

for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Vong Tat leong David
HEB
Director

EF

Xu Siping
Director

EF

AZ+HBA#EREETIE i TIEFAREE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEEREBR

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BEB_ZFENA=+HILEE

Reserve
1
Financial
Property Capital Statutory assets at Exchange
Share Share  revaluation  redemption surplus FVOCI  translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EBEMZE
WAZATE
NEER RAgEE EEBH  RZER
K& RIEE 1] fitE ffe EERE ErifE ZRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FiEn FiEr THEL Fitn FiEn FHEL FiEn THEL
(Note 24) ~ (Note 26@a) ~ (Note 26(b) ~ (Note 26(c) ~(Note 26(d)) ~(Note 26(e))  (Note 26(f))
(i) (Witoea)  (Waaem)  (W3260)  (Witzew)  (Biee)  (Hiate)
At 30 April 2018 RZZ-\ENA=1H 7,688 611,780 1,31 262 270 - 2910 (240,374) 383,767
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 9 ¥1 & R ME B EIHEIRE
b EL - - - - - 787 - (6,226) (5.439)
Restated as at 1 May 2018 R-Z-\ERR—HE7| 7,688 611,780 1,231 262 270 787 2910 (246,600) 378,328
Profit for the year RERF &R - - - - - - - 22,160 22,160
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
ltem that will not be reclassified to - E# T EEH HBZEm
profit or loss ZEH
Changes in fair value of financial R AFEF AL ZEMA
assets at FVOCl JeBEE AT ES - - - - - (15,861) - - (15,861)
Item that may be reclassified AR EEHN I EZ Rl
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation 2 E BN EBEL ZE
of foreign operations B - - - - - - (1,551) - (1,551)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ AEEH2EHRAE
for the year - - - - - (15,861) (1,551) - (17412)
Total comprehensive (loss) income A2 (K1) A
for the year - - - - - (15,861) (1,551) 22,160 4,748
At30 April 2019and 1May 2019  A-Z-AEMA=1+HEK
“E-NERF-A 68 611780 1231 20 m (15074 1359 (40 38307
Profit for the year REREA - - - - - - - 10,218 10,218
Other comprehensive loss Hth2EER
Item that will not be reclassified to - E# ST 8 EF 7 B2 /52
profit or loss ZEE
Changes in fair value of financial ~ FBEXRATFE)GEZ S
assets at FVOCl REELATEED - - - - - (331) - - (331)
Item that may be reclassified ARFENHEZ AR
subsequently to profit or loss Ef
Exchange differences on translation #2E §5 EFE 4 2 [E 3 %
of foreign operations £ - - - - - - (1313) - (1313)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ AEEHM2EFHBLE
for the year - - - - - (331) (1313) - (1,644)
Total comprehensive (loss) income % /27 (B18) WA
for the year - - - - - (331) (1313) 10218 8,574
At 30 April 2020 RZBZZEMA=1H 7,688 611,780 1,231 262 270 (15,405) 46 (214,222) 391,650
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BE-ZE_ZHENA=1tHILEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HaE FERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before income tax R P15 35 Al A 9,920 22,258
Adjustments for: TERETIEE -
Bank interest income RITHEHA 5 (60) (119)
Finance costs B S B AR 6 679 640
Dividend income from listed equity securities ETRAESR 2 REWA 4 (659) (519)
Other interest income EHAb R BHA 5 (750) (750)
Depreciation e 11 771 773
Change in fair value of listed equity securities at FVPL FERERRATEIR ETRAES 2
NEEEF 4 3,247 2,073
Net impairment losses recognised in respect of THIRE SR ANBEE & A EER ZRE
financial assets at amortised cost BB 1,337 4,679
Change in fair value of investment properties BEMEZ N FEEE) 12 761 (15,320)
Change in fair value of club membership at FVPL BEBRRATEIEZSHEB 2 ATFEZS 150) 100 -
Write-off of other payables E b T BRI 8 5 (89) -
Write-off of deposits paid for acquisition of U - R R E N 2 RS M
property, plant and equipment 6 364 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESHEAZRERERE
working capital 15,621 13,715
Changes in working capital: LEESES
Financial assets at FVPL BEBREATEIEZEREE (6,276) 7,008
Forfeited collaterals held for sale & BB UUE IR @ 434 -
Account receivables FEUBR TR (5,431) (21,495)
Loan receivables EWER (18,755) 1,152
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1Ze AR R E A FE UL BR 3R (321) (600)
Accruals and deposits received EErRIEREWIES 2,700 2,763
Cash (used in) from operations KE (A RBRE (12,028) 2,543
Income tax paid ERETER - (3)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities RETEH(FTRA)RMBESTFE (12,028) 2,540
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Bank interest received EUERTTHRIE 5 60 119
Dividend received from listed equity securities B ETRAFESHRE 4 659 519
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELEE (14) (28)
Net cash generated from investing activities REEBRBZRLFHE 705 610
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEH
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (2,028) (1,893)
Interest paid EAFE (679) (640)
Net cash used in financing activities RETEBMACESTFE (2,707) (2,533)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents BRERBEESZEEE (AL EINBE (14,030) 617
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the REHBEERESESEER
reporting period 34,434 34,626
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INBTE RSB 2 28 (804) (809)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting RIBEHAZHEERRESEEER -
period, represented by bank balances and cash BRITERERS 20 19,600 34,434
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BECEZ-EFNA=TALFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The shares of
the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is situated at 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Vongroup Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the immediate and ultimate holding company
and Mr. Vong Tat leong David is the ultimate controlling party (the “Ultimate Controlling Party”)
of the Company, who is also the chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the
accounting policies adopted in the 2019 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the current
period as detailed below.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Annual Improvements Project — 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity

The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax consequences of dividends are recognised in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the past transactions
or events that generated the distributable profits were originally recognised and (b) these
requirements apply to all income tax consequences of dividends as defined in HKFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

HKAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed specifically to obtain an asset other than a qualifying
asset are included as part of general borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

NAEHR

Vongroup Limited([ R AR DIRIEHEHS RAERHAEHE
AR L RERE 2 ERAF - ARRZROHREBHERS
FrAERDAI([BERRPT ) ER EH e RAR 2 M FEALR
CricketSquare,HutchinsDrive,P.0.Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111,
Cayman Islands » H == 2 & Z i BT A B B N B2 BB 5 Bl 388355
B OT7A

KRR EBEBRRERR -HNBARZ EEEKINGRE
B R M 32 o

RRAREERE NEBELHE((EBRELHS )R
Z A@Vongroup Holdings Limited 78 A7 2 HE Rk &E&ERA
Al MEBEGBEERRNRARZREERA ([FREZERF D &IF
BARBZITRBERATES -

ARARNREAMBAR(GEIAEE ] 2HEEHBRERAET
(MBTD25 MEBTMARABTZWEE

o

TESHBE
BRER

WEGEMBREDREGEEEHAMAS(EEEMA
g DRMGZEBFBERERB((EEFBREEL ) LRHEE
EMABERZERYBRELEL FEGARER(FEGE
AN RZE) EEAREMRARTERRGKIZRESREM
RE WEGAMBBRATABIMES LHRB( LTH
A1) Z ER B ERE -

BrRBMEIN MASRBHCHNBEO T
BRERM T ORI AR E AR B 5 A BRI ERZ #RT

RIETEEFHREES RERAPHRR CEEL R
—NFGEMTERKRTRB 2 ST HR— 2

BRANFRET,/ EASET B BB B R 5 228

FREMERE — —FT—nFE T+ F

BB REERF125F - DR BB TANAA T E

REEIANEE QBEENMERTE  DREZNERELA
DEENNBERSAENHR B HM2ERaEE T E
R RO)ZERTERNEBHBRSERFIRAENERSH
PREmMEHEE -

RNZFETEGET BRI EENERTZE -

BEBEERE235 - A EIREMEAIERK A

ZEERDRE - IR EEEEERSEREERN BERT
REHAHEERIDAEE MEKA—REE-—REAEEH
—#5: RO)FEMRESHRAEREEIN—REEMEHNE
EBER—RIEET -

RS HRAMBRRLETAEATZE -



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HK{IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 supports the requirements in HKAS 12 Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 does not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated assumptions to determine current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a change is made to a plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI instead of at FVPL if specified conditions are met.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related interpretations for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. It significantly changes, among others, the lessee accounting by replacing the
dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations created by all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees
and lessors.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time
at 1 May 2019 (i.e. the date of initial application, the “DIA”) using the modified retrospective
approach in which comparative information has not been restated. Instead, the Group
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance
of accumulated losses or other component of equity, where appropriate, at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical expedient not to reassess whether a
contract was, or contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and to contracts entered into or
changed on or after the DIA that are identified as leases applying HKFRS 16.

As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were classified as operating lease in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for the leases in accordance with the
transition provisions of HKFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting policies applicable from the DIA.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
As lessee — leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases previously classified as
operating leases at the DIA, except for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, and
the Group applied the following practical expedients on a lease-by-lease basis (if applicable):

(@) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

(b) adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by the provision for onerous leases recognised
immediately before the DIA by applying HKAS 37, as an alternative to performing an
impairment review at the DIA;

(c) did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the DIA;

(d) excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the DIA; and

(e) used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or will be accounted for as investment property
using the fair value model, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis, measured at either,

(@) their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the DIA; or

(b) an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised immediately before the DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the DIA.

The Group’s operating lease commitment was regarded as short-term leases and are
exempted from recognising right-of-use assets and lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. Except for
reclassification of leasehold land and buildings from property, plant and equipment to right-of-
use assets (presented in property, plant and equipment) from 1 May 2019, the adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

As lessor

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on transition for leases in which it is a lessor
and those leases are accounted for by applying HKFRS 16 from the DIA.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements is
historical cost, except for investment properties, financial assets at FVPL and financial assets at
FVOCI which were stated at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and all
its subsidiaries.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests (if applicable). Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling interest (if applicable) even if
this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost and (ii) the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former
subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is presented in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment
loss. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and/or receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured at the excess of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the
acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a separate asset and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date amounts of identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income from bargain
purchase.

Any resulting gain or loss arising from remeasuring the previously held equity interests in the
acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated
separately:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

5 years or the lease term, whichever is shorter
5to 10 years
5 years

Before 1 May 2019:
Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or the lease term, whichever is shorter
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful lives or
the terms of the leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which
the item is derecognised.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, as the Group’s lease payments for its leasehold land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements at the inception
of the lease because similar land and buildings are not sold or leased separately, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, leasehold land and
buildings were transferred to right-of-use assets (included in property, plant and equipment).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include properties held for a currently undetermined future use
and properties that are held under operating lease, which satisfy the definition of investment
property and carry at fair value.

Before 1 May 2019, investment properties included those properties held by owner which satisfy
the definition of investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Forfeited collaterals held for sales

Forfeited collaterals are initially recognised at the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, which is generally below the net realisable value of the
repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the assets, the related loans and advances together with
the related impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position. Subsequently, forfeited collaterals are carried at the lower of the amount
initially recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written down if and when the net
realisable value falls to below the carrying amount of the asset. The excess of the net proceeds
over the carrying amount of the forfeited collaterals is recognised as a gain upon the disposal of
the assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and either
(a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant financing component which
are initially measured at their transaction price) are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at amortised cost; (i) debt
investment measured at FVOCI; (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI (“Designated FVOCI”);
or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period following the change in the
business model.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as FVPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,
derecognition or through the amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include account receivables, loan receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables, and bank balances and cash.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2)

3)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies in other comprehensive income. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value and are not subject to
impairment. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and shall not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred directly to accumulated
profits or losses.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI include unlisted equity investments not
held for trading.

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI, including financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that
are otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest income is presented separately
from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:
(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on
initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVPL include listed equity securities and unlisted
debt securities of club memberships.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is,
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial
liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the
financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accruals and deposits received and bank borrowings.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (‘ECL”) on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost and contract assets to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each
reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on the
following one or more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk and loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss

allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial asset that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
particular, the following information is taken into account in the assessment:

«  the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on the due dates;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

» anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

« actual or expected changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have or may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk

on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual

payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument

has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined

to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Bank balances and cash are determined to have low credit risk.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For account receivables and contract assets without a significant financing component or
otherwise for which the Group applies the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount based on historical experience of
recoveries of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the assets are let out and on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. Before 1 May 2019, contingent rents are recognised as
income in the period in which they are earned. From 1 May 2019, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate are initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date and subsequently adjusted when such index or rate changes. Such
payments are recognised as income on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Other variable
lease payments are recognised as income in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurs.
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2.

ECEFNAZTHLEFE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the Group’s rights to receive
dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Disposal of forfeited collaterals held for sale

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the buyer of the forfeited collaterals take control of and
accepts the goods.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is provision of technology &
management services and financial consultancy services.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a
customer and identifies as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer
either:

(@) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following criteria are
met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with other
resources that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is capable of
being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately identifiable
from other promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or service is
distinct within the context of the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group satisfies the performance
obligation at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the concept of control and
such indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Revenue from provision of technology & management services is recognised at a point in time in
the accounting period when the actual service provided.

Commission income from provision of financial consultancy services on capital funding is
recognised at a point in time in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreement or deal
mandate when relevant significant act has been completed.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component (i.e. the customer or the Group
is provided with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration
for the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense separately from revenue from contracts with
customers in profit or loss.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for the effect of the significant financing component if the period of financing
is one year or less.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s
right to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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2.

ToEFNA=THLEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is
also the functional currency of the Company and most of the subsidiaries.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

» assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

* income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rate;

+ all resulting exchange differences arising from the above translation and exchange
differences arising from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised as a separate component of equity;

+ on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to the
foreign operation that is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain or
loss on disposal is recognised,;

* on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation which does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in that
foreign operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss; and

+ on all other partial disposals, which includes partial disposal of associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external sources of
information to assess whether there is any indication that the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets (presented in property, plant and equipment) and the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
cash-generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets, other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary investment of the
specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leases
Applicable from 1 May 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of the contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value asset leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and
accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease separately. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate component are considered to
be part of the total consideration that is allocated to the separately identified components of the

contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset (presented in property, plant and equipment) and a
lease liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises:
(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 May 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or the lease term, whichever is shorter
As the Group’s lease payments for its leasehold land and buildings cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements at the inception of the lease because similar land and
buildings are not sold or leased separately, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of
the leasehold land and buildings and are classified as in right-of-use assets (included in property,
plant and equipment).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following
payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
() amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or where it is not
readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there are changes to the
lease payments arising from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when there is a change in
the residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group
remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and
there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any
remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 May 2019 (Continued)
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an operating lease at the
inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease separately from
non-lease components of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on a relative stand-alone price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating
lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease from the effective date of
the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Applicable before 1 May 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

As lessor

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

As lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leaves, and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the employees of the Group’s entities
established in the PRC are required to participate in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by local governments. Contributions to these plans are expensed in profit or loss as
incurred and other than these monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits to its employees.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in capital reserve within equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items
that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end
of each reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred tax arising from
initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESHEBE#E)
Related parties BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group, that is defined as: HAEALTRERKEERB I ALRER THROT ¢
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person: @ MWMEATHBRUATER BATHZATZARERES
HHE
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) TEHISKEREHAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEATLE X
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a holding company (i) BASEXASEEZERARZETEERERKS -

of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies: (b) (HFFE THMEIGES  RIZERERAEEEREE

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each iy ZEERAEEBER—SBZKEQRI(ANSZRA
holding company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). Al M@ A R R R E R AR LA RE)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint (i) " ERAS EBRIZBEQNAELE(HS—EE
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member). FIEEBETKE QAR ZHBERRNEERE)-

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MAEEEHRA—FE=za8r%E-

(i) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the vy —HERAE=FERBZAELE ME—ERBA%E
third entity. =HEEEERA -

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either V) ERAAARSHEARREHEZEEREESFRR
the Group or an entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the ST BEBE R AR -

sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

i

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). (vi)

BERR(QNAEE A LI RARZES

1=
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of (i) R@QOFTBMATHERBEEAZE NLBEZEE(K

ZERZERAR)TREEEMRE -

anr

the key management personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management (vii) BESEFAEEXNSEARREZTEZEEAEBRE T
personnel services to the Group or to a holding company of the Group. REEFAEBIER AT

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to —ZEARTEBIEBI e EZATHZEENERLT
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: HWHENKERE 81 :
(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@ FZALHFLREBRREFE
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZALTHERBHREHENTFLZ &
() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner. (O ZATHZATHRBHAREHEHEREA
In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint REABBALTZEET HEQFBREZBHENTZHBAR M
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture. BEDEBIEZAECEIHBAR -
Segment reporting PEBRE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the consolidated BERERZEEDBIEAYEREBNMA BRIEFEEDE
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to Group’s BEREBEUREEE WYEEBHAUCZERLRRBHEE SEIF
most senior executive management, which is the Group’s chief operating decision maker, for the HE ZREAFIER - DEERSIREREAA R E U RE
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of BIREHYE @R FERZLEDRAMMTE LM RS BRI ]
business and geographical locations. Aite
Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes M BEREMS  EAREAZEE D MBI ETEFE HHEHE
unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the P ESEHREEREREES - £EBREME TR ERE
nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of oD HEERKREREZFEAREERREEFBBEUZ S
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature RN BRI T EAZ KL D IMEFE R D ZERE IR A
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be BEAE

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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BECEZ-EFNA=TALFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by the management
of the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (presented in property, plant and
equipment) based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of the relevant
assets of similar nature and functions. The estimated useful lives could be different as a
result of technical innovations which could affect the related depreciation charges included
in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The management of the Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (presented in property, plant and equipment), at the end of each reporting period
in accordance with the accounting policies as disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the management has to assess whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the asset would
be determined as the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, the
calculations of which involve the use of estimates. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and amounts of the future cash flows and fair value less costs of
disposal, the estimated recoverable amount of the asset may be different from the amount
actually received and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Loss allowance for ECL

The management of the Group estimates the loss allowance for financial assets at amortised
cost including account receivables, loan receivables and deposits and other receivables by
using various inputs and assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s historical
information, recoverable amount of pledged collaterals, past collection history of debtors,
concentration risk of debtors, the Group’s actual loss experience, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of the financial assets at amortised cost.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC was
determined by independent professional valuers. The valuation performed was arrived
at with reference to recent market transaction prices at the end of reporting period and/
or market rental value for similar properties at similar locations with total fair value of
investment properties approximately HK$245,428,000 at 30 April 2020 (2079: approximately
HK$246,697,000). Favourable or unfavourable changes to recent market prices would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or loss.

Fair value of financial assets at FVOCI

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI that are not traded in active market is
determined by valuation techniques. Fair value of financial assets at FVOCI is determined
by independent professional valuer by using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow valuation model. Valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data and make assumptions that are primarily based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

2. FESHEE#®R)

EREFHEF RHER

REREAMBERERE ARETEEFELET ARAKZRE
R A R ERASEMEFRRER BE AF BWAR
AN ZRESHE URAMELZRE - ESRAEN G WAER
LEBRZAER BEUHEENEEBATEARZARRER
ZHEE-NEEERT AR 2T S EIE T MR RS
B (WA BB AT IR ERREM) T IARER -

THE a2 EFERIF
() % BERREZAEFFHY

(i)

(ii})

(iv)

)
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ME BERREARERAEEE(NDE BFERRER
INEHRRE - REEEEREHRREBESHRE
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Ut At 2 SR AT BE M IR EE AR R o

RHE RERERRE R
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EHBRE)GHRBEKAATIR . SREE(BREEKR
o B E R R DA R A B UIR ) BB IR A - At
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BERATIRZ SR EENREE
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BT - [BESENME RS 2 FEYMERNT S
MBRSEER,/SMERSMET RZE=-2F 1A
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Bl as sl B 18 & SR L ARE R -

BAFEHAR M RENRH 2 2BAEL AFME

THEERM SR G 2BATFEFALMZAREZSRE
EZAFERGERDEE - BAHESFARGR2ERGEZ
EREBEZATERB X MEMEABERD (R1ER
RAELRBHERNIETE - HERDEELIFART LTS
BERAERZBARE YEEREBEZERAREFZMS
BRI RR -



N EEAR AT FiR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TESHBE#E)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued) BEAGHEFRME(E)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) Tt 2 EEHE (&)

(vi) Income taxes Vi) B
Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the future tax treatment of EEMEHBESIREETR S BEBEEIE 2 HE - A%
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax ERERBT S IMBETE  WIBNE] IR IBEE Wik E
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered RHZHBRIEBESTHENERE Ut RFRSED 2 A&
periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are FoREFREEE DR A IIRE S =8 M HRIERERER
recognised for deductible temporary differences and tax losses only to the extent that it is B B2 RERTEA A BRI R R I8 A E - A - 57
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets RRERH M 2T EEEEB A - EREES®H
can be utilised. As a result, management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of EHREH T EZS G
future taxable profits. Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Future changes in HKFRSs ERMBREEINNRREEH

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the RIEEMBRREIEZA BB SR ASEHBMHIUA TR

following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current period, which the Group R R AR (REFRAIREN) 2H5T&IETEBMER

has not early adopted. HAER| .

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8 Definition of Material ® ERGHERNFIRRESHR 2B EAZERY

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ERGTERIE3 HAMKER FIREEREO

and 9 ERAE7HRREIR 2 IERT

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business @ BB REEREIR 2B sz EEY

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions @ EREMBHREELE 6K 2B 20198 RESHEBEREER0

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BB BRELERE17H REBEH

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use © ERGEERE 165 25T ¥EE R AT TS FRIBD)

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ® BB ERIEIRZIERT [BITE K Z A

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework © BB BRELERER 2B BEFRSIERY

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle © B BHRE LRz FENE ZE - \FE-T-TFREHC

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and BRI BREERE10H R BECEMEEEEITEY

its Associate or Joint Venture © BEARGERE285 2 B5]

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 0 RIEZTF-A-BR2ERBZFEBREER

@ Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or @ k3 THE-A Az RGN EESERMME BRME
after 1 January 2020 R

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 8 i FRNA—AR &G FEER AR

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 oo R F—A—B &Rz FEBREER

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 6 i ZZF-A—BRzERBZ FEBEBER-

©  The effective date to be determined 6 EREBETE -

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future RNAFERIEATERREREETN] S CETBAUEHRE

adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their ERAJEELEZHE  EHNRESERETZEENHAEE LS

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. WBHRE s TE -

SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. HttpEER

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being identified as the chief REBRDREEDBERBEFEMARNARRITER(RIRNAEE

operating decision makers (CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of MERRE(EBEEARKRE]))REZEAR EEEPRAMIE

segment performance focuses on nature of services provided. No operating segments identified HIRHS 2 S - MEBAEE 2 7] 2| & DM &S O

by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable operating segments of the HREEEERREZPNZLEDE -

Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, as a result of the restructure of internal information REZ-_Z_TFNA=+TRHLFE AEBRNIEHRER

reporting purposes, the Group has determined that there are four reportable operating segments BOAEECHE TXAHzOER2REEDE - LEHEFE

which are set out below. The comparative figures have been restated accordingly. MEEHEITED -

1. Technology & management: Technology & management related services 1. BHERERE: B RERARRE

2. Finandial services: Consumer finance, other financial/business services 2. SRRF HBERE  Hiow  EBRYLEEED

and related activities
3. Property: Real property and related activities 3. W FHE RABREE)

4. Securities: Securities and related activities 4. BEF: FHRAEES
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

3. HftpEERE)

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities a) DEWR ¥E EEREE
Segment revenue represents revenue derived from provision of technology & management DR B RHERE N EERE SRS - WERER
services, financial services, property leasing services, and trading of listed equity securities. BAREE FMRABAEE ZWE -
Segment results represent the revenue reported by each segment without allocation of DIREBESOIBPERINRE  BREDEEZETEMEA
certain other revenue and other gains, corporate expenses and finance costs. This is the REHMUE DX R ot AR E RS B RTE
measure reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes of resource allocation and SEEREMAAEE T ERLE R B EES R EHE-
performance assessment.
The segment information provided to the CODM of the Group for the reportable operating MAFEE2HRELDBERAAEETBLLRRERBE
segments for the year is as follows: DEERMT
Year ended 30 April 2020 BE_Z_ZHENA=THLEE
Technology & Financial
management services Property Securities Consolidated
MNERER SRR L/ES BH we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FRT FHET FExT FExT
Segment revenue DA 30,689 1,063 4,859 (2,588) 34,023
Segment results DS 23,918 376 3,405 (2,771) 24,928
Unallocated other revenue AR Bt L A R B U g
and other gains 1,113
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERS (15,442)
Finance costs B ISR AR (679)
Profit before income tax B 1S5 AT e ) 9,920
Income tax credit FisHiEe 298
Profit for the year REEmH 10,218
Year ended 30 April 2019 HECZT - NFNA=FTHIFE
Technology & Financial
management services Property Securities Consolidated
BHE B8 SRR bIES EeE Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHT FAT
Segment revenue HalEs 29,734 658 5,115 (1,554) 33,953
Segment results DEEEE 21,559 (420) 19,614 (1,843) 38,910
Unallocated other revenue F B E A K E A U ES
and other gains 1,004
Unallocated corporate expenses IO ERY (17,016)
Finance costs TSR AR (640)
Profit before income tax B 1S B Al A 22,258
Income tax expense FriSRim % (98)
Profit for the year NEEHF 22,160

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 2.

REDEZ G BRAN E2MRARE 2 ST RFEAAR -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable operating

N EEAR AT FiR2020
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BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

3. HthpEEN(E)
a) 2EKNE & EERAEMEE)
R ERQED RN 2 AKEEERBBZANET

segments:
Technology & Financial
management services Property Securities Unallocated Consolidated
MERER SRR L/ES BH RAMEH TE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHERT FTHET FET FTET FTET
At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-_ZFMA=T1H
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ERNEEE 85,513 42,433 247,897 11,718 39,469 427,030
Liahilities =i
Reportable segment liabilities ERNBEEE 3,565 159 26,293 - 5,363 35,380
Other information Hittg s
Depreciation e 117 2 - - 652 771
Net impairment losses recognised RIREERAHECEREE
in respect of financial assets at ERZREEEFE
amortised costs (159) 1,058 - - 438 1,337
Change in fair value of WEME T AT EE
investment properties - - 761 - - 761
Change in fair value of financial assets B BB AL EIELZ £/
at FVPL BEZNTEZE - - - - 100 100
Write-off of other payables H e FOBM S - - - - (89) (89)
Write-off of deposits paid for acquisition of St BEM % « R RERED N2
property, plant and equipment RE M - - - - 364 364
Additions to property, plant NEME BB NEE
and equipment 9 - - - 5 14
Technology & Financial
management services Property Securities Unallocated Consolidated
R RERE SRR S &5 KA e ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FEL FET FAET FAET
At 30 April 2019 RZZE-NFHNA=1H
Assets gE
Reportable segment assets EWMNPEE 102,121 24,471 249,109 8,274 34,196 418171
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities EH/NBEE 1,392 170 28,997 - 4,536 35,095
Other information HipER
Depreciation e 17 5 - - 651 773
Net impairment losses recognised RIRBHK AN B SREBE
in respect of financial assets at BRZBERBETE
amortised costs 2,266 82 - - 2,331 4,679
Change in fair value of BEME 2 NFEES
investment properties - - (15,320) - - (15,320)
Additions to property, plant NEME  BE NEE
and equipment - - - - 28 28

55
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 3. HftpE&ERE)
a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) Q) SEkG EE BEREEE)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between REESBRBEIRSERSEERMNE :

segments:

«  segment assets include certain property, plant and equipment, investment properties, s DHEEBEBRELETVE BERRE REVE -BR
financial assets at FVOCI, certain financial assets at FVPL, forfeited collaterals held for H2EWARAFEIEREZERMEE ST EBBE
sale, account receivables, loan receivables, certain deposits and other receivables and RAFEVNEZEMERE  FEWSIIEIF R - B
certain bank balances and cash. Other assets are not allocated to operating segments B ERER A TRS RNEMEWRIENARE TIRT
as these assets are managed on a corporate basis; and EHpkRe EMWEETARNEELE S REAL

b)

9

FEEDRAREEEE R

+  segment liabilities include certain accruals and deposits received, bank borrowings, . SNEAEeESTREZEERDWIEZS BRITEE B
certain tax payables and certain deferred tax liabilities. Other liabilities are not FTREMNEBLEETELHBEE - HMBETADERE
allocated to operating segments as these liabilities are managed on a corporate basis. wastE RRALSEBNEAREEERE -

Geographical information b) iigER

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i) the Group’s TREINBEG)AEEINIEP ZWA RN EEIEEE

revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment properties and property, LYE -BELREE(HEFRSEE ) 2 HIBMLEER -

plant and equipment (the “Specified Non-current Assets”). The geographical location of the Wz I B IR BB ERREN - B EIERBEEL
revenue is presented based on the entity’s countries of domicile. The geographical location WIBNENEAEZERMNEZY

of the Specified Non-current Assets is presented based on the physical location of the assets.

Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-2F —E-NF —E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHT FHETT
Hong Kong &b 33,100 33,156 233,025 234,611
The PRC s 699 509 7,557 8,736
Macau JRPS 224 288 17,180 17,476
Total “EEt 34,023 33,953 257,762 260,823
Information about major customers o BRXEFFZER
Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or more of the total revenue of the KEBEBERNEBMBUSBR0%TIA L2 BEUREHTI
Group is as follows: N
2020 2019
—BEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAETT
Customer A EEA 5,900 Note ffat
Customer B =FB 5,815 Note ff5t
Customer C BFEC 4,860 Note ffat
Customer D =FD 4,300 Note [f17#
Customer E EFE 4,000 Note ffat
Note: The individual customers contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the Kt - RBBFE  ZERFFLHANE BB ST BI10%
Group in the respective year. AT e
These customers referred to above are mainly from the Group’s technology & management EZEEPETERAREER B LERE S -
segment.
This segment includes traditional business demands as well as newer business demands ZOBEOEEMIRBERBAZEBLEZBREBE K
in the Hong Kong economy, which is currently going through a transitional period, to ARFEBRR R FEEE((FaRERREEN
address new business and social paradigms that result from the Coronavirus Disease TEBIMSEHN -ZETEBFTREBESHBER &R
2019 (“COVID-19”) environment. These newer business demands include online education REBREMERAS R -
technology, distance business, and other virtual event technology.
As a result of the Group’s experience in fintech, cloud and virtual technologies having been ARBEARFAEE N BB BinREBRBEZEBT
strengthened during past few years, the Group has been able to transition towards these g AEBRFRBEEZSABANIER 2 %%
newer business demands with larger projects during the year. Typically, there is no reliance TR —RME RELTERBAMNE-—FTFP -R2 A%
on any single customer in the long run. Instead, the Group’s business seeks to grow by B ¥BSSERNENMERPLNEEERER -

securing new customers and new projects.
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REVENUE 4. W&
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 BEBUBREEANEISEZREEFENZ
— point in time Yk — R %
Provision of technology & management services REMEREERE 30,689 29,734
Revenue from other sources RERMERZ Kas
Provision of financial services RESBRE
— Interest income from consumer finance business —HBERER 2T EWKA 836 624
— Interest income from pawn business —BE R A BWRA 16 34
— Gain on disposal of forfeited collaterals held for sale — HEFERSMEE IR M 211 -
1,063 658
Provision of property leasing services RYER SR
— Gross rental income from investment properties — B MEZBHESWA 4,859 5,115
Trading of listed equity securities BEE FmRAES
— Dividend income from listed equity securities — ERAFES Z IR BWA 659 519
— Net loss on listed equity securities at FVPL (Note) —BREREATEIER Y EFTRAESZ
EEFRE (A aE) (3,247) (2,073)
(2,588) (1,554)
34,023 33,953
Note: Bitet -
2020 2019
—E_ZTF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net loss on listed equity securities at FVPL BRBRIRATEYRZ FTRAES 2 BBFE
— Change in fair value —AFEEE (2,589) (1,169)
— Realised loss* — BB B (658) (904)
(3,247) (2,073)
*  The amount represented the proceeds from the disposal of listed equity securities of ¥ ZeBEHE EWIRAE S ZATE FUE 438,338,000 7T

approximately HK$38,338,000 (2079: approximately HK$58,774,000) less relevant costs and
carrying value of the listed equity securities sold of approximately HK$38,996,000 (2079:

(ZZF—NF : 458,774,000/ C )% Fi & EHRAES
2 W B AR 7R K BR T {8 4938,996,000/8 TT( — FE—AF : 4

approximately HK$59,678,000). 59,678,000, ) °
OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 5. Hp ARz

2020 2019
et St 223 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Other revenue Hitb iz
Bank interest income RITRLEHA 60 119
Other interest income EAth F S A 750 750
Management fee income BEEBUA 216 216
Write-off of other payables Lt A FRIE M 8 89 -
1,115 1,085

Other gains Hn 2RI
Exchange gain, net bE 5 e 58 5 5
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6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

6. BRATBBIATEFI

This is stated after charging: KHBRATEIEZS
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Finance costs V-p 9%
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER R 679 640
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) BIRA(BIEEEFHH)
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind HE RN EMEYEF 5,017 6,902
Contributions to defined contribution plans REH-ETEI R 88 69
Total staff costs BB TR 5,105 6,971
Other items HtHEH
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN S
— Audit services —ZH R 600 650
— Non-audit services — ERZERT 100 -
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment e E R e 343 773
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE 428 -
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that ~EAFERA ZIREWEEL 7 BELEHY
generated leasing income 142 150
Net impairment losses recognised in respect of financial assets at BB SR AT BR 2 © RO E ERER
amortised costs REREFRE
— Account receivables — FEUBR X 1,058 2,266
— Loan receivables — W ER 236 82
— Deposits and other receivables —iEe R EHAMEWRIA 43 2,331
Write-off of deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and PUEEWE  BEREREENZ
equipment (included in “Administrative and other operating e (GTATITB R A2 )Ml
expenses”) 364 -
7. INCOME TAX 7. PSR
2020 2019
—EBECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current tax BIHA%E 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Current year REE 567 -
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBEEE (829) -
(262) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PRI EMSE([REMREH]) - 3
(262) 3
Deferred taxation EERIE
Changes in temporary differences (Note 23) B R E) (A 7F23) (36) 95
Total income tax (credit) expense for the year KEFHER (e )25 (298) 98

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the REBEERAE
jurisdiction in which entities in the Group are domiciled and operated. swm Al f




INCOME TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject
to any income tax under these jurisdictions.

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong is applicable to years of assessment
beginning on or after 1 April 2018, under which, the profit tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000
assessable profits arising from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits arising from Hong Kong above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the rate
of 16.5%. As only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is eligible to elect the two-tiered profits tax
rates, profits of the remaining subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

For the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

PRC EIT has not been provided for the years ended 30 April 2020 as the Group’s entities in the
PRC incurred a loss for taxation purposes.

PRC EIT is calculated at the standard rate of 25% on the estimated assessable income for the
year ended 30 April 2019 as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

FAREARAR FR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.

FEMBRRMEE
YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z-ZFNA=1HLEE

FRigBt(#)

BREREHERABELZHENRAIRN  AEBBELRNZ
ZRERE MW ER TS -

EAFISHBEMEHEANE S \FMA— B 2%M
BERBFE B A EBEELEEE £/ E2,000,000%E
TORERR B A G 8. 25% M B R M FIGEH - MAEBBELED
2,000,000 7T LA = 9 JE 2R 5 i 1) % 488 48 1221 6.5% B Bt R H o |
RAEENE-—RNBARAERERTSHMEMARS A%
B EL BRI BB 1N )2 i ) A 4 8 21 6.5% ) B — B SR A -

BEZ-ZER_Z-NFUAZTHLEE BEMNEHRT
RBF SRR E MR HIEE

HRAKERTRZEBESHRENE < BR SREE-F
Z“EFEMA=FTREFEIRHETEOERAEHEE -

HE-T-NFMASTALFE FROLHREBIRES
FEBB P {3 3438 A R A B 5 A 05+ H i SRR B I
AH-

Reconciliation of income tax (credit) expense Frew (B2 FE Z 8k
2020 2019
—EBoBF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Profit before income tax KR PTSEE A& B 9,920 22,258

Tax calculated at the rates applicable to the respective REANBERGREER R RFEZFHIE

tax jurisdictions 1,532 3,619
Effect on graduated tax rate BRI TR (165) -
Non-deductible expenses Y1 2,337 1,441
Tax exempt revenue XL (1,285) (3,181)
Unrecognised temporary differences RERYGREE (294) (148)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses R LRI AR BEEE (1,594) (1,633)
Over-provision in prior year BAFEBERE (829) -
Income tax (credit) expense for the year REEAEH(EE) M (298) 98

59



60

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBMRME

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BECEZ-EFNA=TALFE

8.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

8(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received and receivable by the directors and chief
executive officer of the Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:

Year ended 30 April 2020

8.

ESRTHEBURIERSHFATHHE

8@ EERITHRARME
ARBEERTRERSERARBDREWBRR 2 EH
B R R BN S BT

BE-Z-TFNA=THLEE

Salaries, allowances Discretionary
Directors’ fees and benefits-in-kind bonus Total
e RER
ESHS BYER BETEAL st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Vong Tat leong David (Note) HEHEEWMT ) 772 600 - 1,372
Mr. Xu Siping RETE A 500 - - 500
Independent BIYFHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Fung Ka Keung David HEREEE 100 - - 100
Dr. Lam Lee G. MEREE - 150 - - 150
Ms. Wong Man Ngar Edna TR L 100 - - 100
1,622 600 - 2,222
Year ended 30 April 2019 HE-_T-NWFHUA=THILFE
Salaries, allowances Discretionary
Directors’ fees and benefits-in-kind bonus Total
e RUR
EENG BEH BIETEAT st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT FET FETT TET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Vong Tat leong David (Note) HEB K E M) 3,000 600 - 3,600
Mr. Xu Siping RETE R A 500 - - 500
Independent BIYFHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Fung Ka Keung David R E 100 - - 100
Dr. Lam Lee G. MREE L 150 - - 150
Ms. Wong Man Ngar Edna ED'Y 2 100 - - 100
3,850 600 - 4,450

Note: Mr. Vong Tat leong David is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief

Executive Officer.

8(b) Emoluments of five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2020 included two
(2019: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above and

three (2019: three) non-director individuals whose emoluments are disclosed as follows:

Bret - EEBREMAARTNITHRAE M EXCRER
B BN 2 B 45 1% 42 (R 1T B AR B0 AT 4R £ AR 755 W ER A0 M

8b) EEREHALTHME

BE-_Z-_ZHENA-TALFE FEELELHEHAL
TEERA(ZE-AF  BE)EE RENWHERRAEL
BHWH BT =R(ZF-NF  ZF)FEEALHIHE

BWEMT
2020 2019
—E_BF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind HE RN EYE 1,164 1,543
Contribution to defined contribution plans REREEIHER 49 46

1,213 1,589




8.

10.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

8(b) Emoluments of five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of the highest paid individuals (excluding the directors of the Company) whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

N EEAR AT FiR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

8. EERTHARURAEBRSFATIHNMES )

8b) AERBHFALHME(E)

FHBAATEENRSHAL(FRELARES) AR
T

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
—E_ZTF —E—NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z251,000,00078 7T 3 3

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive officer, the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
ended 30 April 2020 and 2019. In addition, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office for the years ended 30 April 2020

and 2019.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year ended 30 April 2020 (2079:
Nil). The directors of the Company do not recommend for payment of a final dividend for the

year ended 30 April 2020 (2079: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the current and prior year is based
on profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the years.

Diluted earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per share as there were no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

RBE-Z-ZFER_ZT-NAFOA=THLFE #HiEE
= TREE LERSHFAIHERRERETAMSH
ZH oW ARETERAENEERALRSFA LN
S (ERSEEEMANEBHIARZ REHAES
BB o

9. RE
BE-_Z-ZFWNA=ZTALFE AXTURENKERER
RE(ZE—NF ) ARAERUIREREE_T_TF
WA=+ALFERNKPRE(ZF—AF : )

10. EREF
AEERBEFE SREAREERFREAQREE A
FEASEPE R R E B BT E @A R T s & -
MREBE-—E-TFER - -NFNA=Z+RALFEYERFE
(EfR SRS 3mSR E B A S R AR R R AR -

BREARMERN IREAT SRE

Earnings BF
2020 2019
et St 523 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, for the izt EHIRERLEERFMENAQREE A
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share FEARF AR F 10,218 22,160
Number of shares R#HEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of MAEGREARARE SRS TERINETY
basic and diluted earnings per share HE 192,189,833 192,189,833
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BE-Z-ZFNA=1THLEE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1. Y& BEKERE

Right-of-use
assets — leasehold Leasehold land Leasehold Furniture, fixtures
land and buildings and buildings improvements and equipment Motor vehicles Total
ERE
BE-HE HE HE B =B
tTiwREF TiREF MELE e "E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FAET
Reconciliation of carrying REECHE-#Z
amount — year ended —E-AFMA=+H
30 April 2019 IHFE
At 1 May 2018 RZZ—-N\FHA—H - 12,472 - 79 1,287 13,838
Additions NE - - - 28 - 28
Depreciation neE - (428) - 27) (318) (773)
Exchange realignments EN A% - - - (1) - (1)
At 30 April 2019 RZZ-NFEA=+H - 12,044 - 79 969 13,092
Reconciliation of carrying REEZHE-EZ
amount - year ended —E-ZFMA=+A
30 April 2020 LHEE
At 1 May 2019 RZZ—-NEHA—H - 12,044 - 79 969 13,092
Impact on initial application BHE R ERE YK
of HKFRS 16 (Note 2) BEEBE165 2
FE(M2) 12,044 (12,044) - - - -
Additions NE - - - 14 - 14
Depreciation wE (428) - - (26) (317) (771)
Exchange realignments &A% - - - (U] - (1)
At 30 April 2020 R-Z-ZFNA=+H 11,616 - - 66 652 12,334
Right-of-use
assets — leasehold Leasehold land Leasehold Furniture, fixtures
land and buildings and buildings improvements and equipment Motor vehicles Total
ERE
BE-HE HE HE B £E
TiREF THREF MEEE R&E "E ‘st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHET FTHET FET
At 30 April 2019 RZE-NFMA=+H
Cost AR - 15,393 104 1,012 4,476 20,985
Accumulated depreciation ZfENE - (3,349) (104) (933) (3,507) (7,893)
Net carrying amount REFE - 12,044 - 79 969 13,092
At 30 April 2020 R-B-EFNA=+H
Cost B 15,393 - 104 1,016 4,476 20,989
Accumulated depreciation ZfENE (3,777) - (104) (950) (3,824) (8,655)
Net carrying amount IREFE 11,616 - - 66 652 12,334

At 30 April 2020, leasehold land and buildings of approximately HK$11,616,000 (2079:
approximately HK$12,044,000) were pledged to secure bank facilities granted to the Group (Note

22).

The total cash outflow for leases, which represents short-term lease, for the year ended 30 April
2020 was approximately HK$651,000.

RZZT_ZTFHA=+H KEEDEHH11,616,0008T(=F
— NG : 4912,044,0008 ) 2 M E T i REFURUSE T AREE

ZRITRE (Fizk22)°

BE_Z_ZFUA=Z+ALFEREEEREE) 2RSSR

4858 5 49651,00078 7T °
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BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REWE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Fair value RAYE
At the beginning of the reporting period AR HRA 246,697 232,073
Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RBEERZ AT EEEFE (761) 15,320
Exchange realignments [E kS (508) (696)
At the end of the reporting period R EIR 245,428 246,697

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured at fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

At the end of the reporting period, the investment properties of approximately HK$245,428,000
(2019: approximately HK$246,697,000) are held under head leases with the remaining lease term
of 8 years to 823 years (2019: 9 years to 824 years).

Certain of the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$121,257,000 at 30 April 2020 (2019: approximately HK$121,100,000) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 22).

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2020. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, AP Appraisal Limited (2079: APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited), who have among their staff fellows of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (2019: the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors) with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued. The management of the Group has discussions with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date. In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The property interests in investment properties thereon (including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land) in Hong Kong of approximately HK$220,712,000 (2079:
approximately HK$220,500,000) are held by the Group as the registered owner. Those property
interests were acquired from the previous registered owners by making lump sum payments
at the upfront (which may be financed by a mortgage). Except for the variable amounts to be
charged by the government subsequently that are reviewed regularly with reference to the
rateable values, for example, there are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the
land lease.

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

The investment properties are leased to independent third parties and a related party for a term
of 2 to 3 years (2079: 1 to 3 years), which had an initial non-cancellable lease term of 1 to 3 years
(2019: 1 to 3 years). The leases do not include purchase or termination options and some leases
provide the lessees with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new terms.

The details of the leasing income from operating leases are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The investment properties are subject to residual value risk. The lease contract, as a result,
includes a provision based on which the Group has the right to charge the tenant for any damage
to certain of the investment properties at the end of the lease, unless the loss or damage caused
through the act, neglect, omission or negligence of the Group. Besides, the Group has purchased
insurance to protect it against any loss that may arise from accidents or physical damages of the
properties.

AEENELHEERAFEURBAS WA SHIEE A EERE
ZHBNEEEEARHERNGE XN BRREMEAR -

RS HIR - 49245,428,00078 T ( = F — L4 : £9246,697,000;%
T)ZEEMERBRABHEOFEMBTHEN F8E23F (=
TN : 9F824%F )

R-ZZEZTFMA=+H  @RMEEL121,257,0008T(=F
— LG 1 £9121,100,0008 7T ) 2 AEBE TR EMESEAE
W FAEEZRITRE (MiFE22)-

REBABREMER-_S_SFMA=+HEHHE (HER
B S RMATAP Appraisal Limited (= F— /1L « G XK EEFE K
BREAERAR)ET EFRERETAEMBG =T —NF :
BEAEATEE) KB 2 B BIEA I BIE Y 2 P it R 3 (R 48

MEETHEER REATHRFEREE RETHER
AEEEREDANEMTRAEERR RGBSR -REFRE

MEZRFER ZENEZESEEERERARARE -

#9220,712,000/8 70 ( = —4F © £9220,500,000;8 ) ) & B E
MENMEES(RERABLN2HRL D TADEDE)H
REBERBETETR/AE REWMERS DR — IR MR
A(FTEEBBIRBFARE) AR BLETRE REFHEEES
R B AR = A R (B E HAAR AT FTURER B 2 Bh & 2840 » Bl 20 - IR BR T 4tb

AR E R BT AR K

HERFE-EREEA

REMELATBUS = h—2@E; BHME3F(=F
—AF 1E3F) B AR A B3 (= F A
1E53F) HETBREBEXR ILRER URHBEREAR
AFERERNOI BRI ERESE -

REBENEERAFBERNGE MK

REMEAZIFHEERR - Rt HEAHEE —HEX &
It AEEFRAAESRERE TRENEZERERER
RE BRIFRAIBERAKEZTH B2 ERIBRME
Hegtih REBMERERRE  UWREBAMGEEBIIMELEE
1R 5 AR -
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Leasing arrangement — as lessor (Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received from the leasing of

investment properties.

12. REWMHE (&)

HERE-FRHEBEAE)

AT B ERE M E R AR EE N RO T D47 o

At 30 April 2020 HK$’000
R-ZB-_ZFMA=+AH FHT
Undiscounted lease payments to be received within one year —FAFUEZ KRR SR 1,743

At 30 April 2019, the Group had the following total future minimum lease payments receivables

—“NEmA=+A" ZJS‘§I$ETF§5%7¥@E/\Z7FEH%H%§%

under non-cancellable operating leases with lessees: fﬁh%ﬁu"ﬂ?uﬁzﬂiﬂ(? KR ERE
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —FER 3,928
In the second to fifth years inclusive MERF(BEEREMT) 1,403
5,331
Fair value hierarchy DN EZER
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation of UTARSEAATFESHIPE =R EYE(HE30)HKE
investment properties classified as Level 3 (Note 30) of the fair value hierarchy: FERNEERT R T EGASENHE -
Range of  Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs  input to fair value
fhE T FABEZ@ABE FABERAABE HE TUTREBBEATEZBR

Investment properties
in Hong Kong

— Commercial properties

i EXZES

— Residential properties

Investment properties
in the PRC
R 2 I EYF

— Commercial property

i EZES

Investment properties in Macau

RBPIZIREYF
— Residential property

Direct comparison approach

BELLER

Direct comparison approach

BELLER

Direct comparison approach

BERIEER

Direct comparison approach

BEELLER

Adjusted market price
(per square feet)

Adjusted market price
(per square feet)

Adjusted market price
(per square meter)

Adjusted market price
(per square feet)

HK$5,688 to HK$50,811
(2019: HK$8,538 to
HK$42,426)

5,688/8 70 250,811/ 7T
(ZZF—N%F : 8538F T
242426787T)

HK$11,825 to HK$41,012
(2019: HK$18,248 to
HK$40,379)

11,8258 7. 241,012/8 7T
(ZZFE—NF :18248% T
2£40,379%7T)

Renminbi (“RMB”)
28,000 to RMB32,000
(2019: RMB30,450 to

RMB33,000)
ARB(TARE]D
28,0000 2

AR #32,0007T
(ZF—N%F:
AR #30,4507C 2
A B #33,0007T)

HK$6,201 to HK$8,066
(2019: HK$7,722 to
HK$8,246)

6,20178 7L £8,066/8 7T
(ZZF—NEF : 77228
F8246;57T)

Assuming other factors remain
unchanged, the higher the
adjusted market price, the higher
the fair value

REBEEMEZRFTE -
wREzTEESRATELS

Assuming other factors remain
unchanged, the higher the
adjusted market price, the higher
the fair value

BREREAMEARRIFE
BREzTEESRATELS

Assuming other factors remain
unchanged, the higher the
adjusted market price, the higher
the fair value

BREREMEARRETE

SRy HEEEAA LS

Assuming other factors remain
unchanged, the higher the
adjusted market price, the higher
the fair value

REEMEAZRFTE
wREzTEESRATELS
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YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 12. REWEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEEHK(E)
The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC is determined NRES - BFARPBRZEENEZ A FENEREELEEAE
using direct comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on FHRREAHEBMERTFERR/ B HABREESE
a price per square feet/per square metre basis, adjusted for a premium or discount specific to the ZIHER BERAEEEFEE 2 e aE iR (EaH
quality of the Group’s properties compared to recent sales on the comparable transactions. The HESFHEAEIEL AL - MEHAE Y TERSUBATFE
higher the adjusted market price, the higher the fair value and a favourable adjustment on the RO R RS2 EBERELENAR HeENtE
timing of comparable transactions will result in a higher fair value measurement. sz A THER S °
Fair value adjustments of investment properties are recognised in the line item “change in BEMEZ AT BEARNGAEBERREME2EWERFIANE
fair value of investment properties” on consolidated statement of profit or loss and other EMEZANTEES | —BEIE RREPRSEZIREMEE
comprehensive income. All gains (losses) recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss EZ AW (BE)ERe B MEMEEREGERTPER -
and other comprehensive income are arisen from the investment properties held at the end of
the reporting period.
GOODWILL 13. @8
2020 2019
et St 523 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Cost B %N 11,383 11,383
Accumulated impairment losses ZIEREER (11,383) (11,383)
Goodwill arising in prior years related to the acquisitions of equity interest in 1k 5 I3/ 42 & SERFEEAzEEARELRIEBRBREERETARIER
REEAF (‘dbR)ER") and was allocated to the financial services CGU (“Financial Services lE@m ) R EEBITC AR ESRREEE RS ELEN
CGU"). ([BRBIRSELER])-
Goodwill acquired through business combinations in prior years had been allocated to the N EE R RERAHUE Y HE R I ESRBERESES
Financial Services CGU for impairment test. B AERERIE -
The carrying amount of goodwill had been fully impaired during the year ended 30 April 2014 MATR T BE Yy EHSENEE—_ZT—NFENE=1+H
due to the uncertain market conditions. I FEEREURE -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI 14, ERHU2EBAZRAFESIRZEHEE
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FHET FAT
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FETERFRE KOATE
— Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) — Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited ([ Honest Pro|) 14(a) - 670
— Claman Global Limited (“Claman”) — Claman Global Limited ([ Claman ) 14(b) 23,808 23,469
23,808 24,139
Notes: Mtat -
(a) Honest Pro is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The principal (a) Honest Pro AR EBELESHFMKRILZ BR AT - AEE

activity of Honest Pro is investment holding. The Group had 20% equity interests in Honest
Pro. The Group does not participate in policy-making processes, including participation
in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest Pro. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group does not exercise significant influence over
the financial and operating policies of Honest Pro. For the year ended 30 April 2020,
a fair value loss of approximately HK$670,000 (2079: fair value loss of approximately
HK$330,000) was recognised in FVOCI reserve. Subsequent to the fair value loss recognised
for the year ended 30 April 2020, the carrying value of investment in Honest Pro is nil as
at 30 April 2020.

E’\Honest Proff B 20%A% 1% - REBAKRE L ,\ﬁﬁﬁHonest Pro
DR B SRAEH E b 5 R 2R E FBORHIETIBR - AR
EERE AEE% Honest Prozﬁﬂ%&éﬁﬂl I?ﬁiﬁﬁ

HEH-BEZ jfyimﬂ +HIEFEE AFEEE
#9670,00078 70 ( = F —NLF : A FEETFEZI330,00078 7T )7
BAFEFAEBEZEARARENER BEEE_T=F

FNA=+TRAILFEERARTFEFBEZ R RN_T_TF
P9 A =+ HRHonest ProZz & 2 EEEEAT -
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14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued)

15.

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Claman is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. Claman and its
subsidiary are engaged in the financial technology industry including in relation to
crowdfunding and technologies and services that seek to increase the efficiency of
online financial transactions. On 26 September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Vongroup Investment Holdings Limited (“VIHL"), entered into a subscription
agreement with Claman, pursuant to which VIHL conditionally agreed to subscribe for
and Claman conditionally agreed to issue and allot 29% of the issued share capital of
Claman (approximately 22.48% of the enlarged issued share capital of Claman) at the
consideration of HK$29,000,000, which was satisfied by allotting and issuing 23,349,436
shares of the Company at the issue price of HK$1.242 per share. On 7 October 2016, the
Company issued 23,349,436 shares to Claman. Based on the closing price of HK$1.64
per share on the date of issuance, the fair value of the Company’s shares issued
amounted to approximately HK$38,293,000. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 September 2016. The Group does not have the power to appoint
a member of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of Claman. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group does not have significant influence and
the power to participate in Claman’s financial and operating policy decisions. For the year
ended 30 April 2020, a fair value gain of approximately HK$339,000 (2079: a fair value
loss of approximately HK$15,531,000) was recognised in FVOCI reserve.

The financial assets at FVOCI were revalued on 30 April 2020 by Roma Appraisals Limited (2079:
APAC Appraisal and Consulting Limited), an independent professional valuer. Fair value of this

unlisted equity investment is estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model based

on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation

requires the directors of the Company to make estimates about the expected future cash flows.

The directors of the Company believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the

related changes in fair values, which are recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income, are reasonable.

Please refer to Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for the details of fair value
measurement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

14. BBRAMRERARAVEIRZEMEE (@)

Biet : ()

(b) Claman& R & [&EE 2 B S MKz 2 BBR A A e Claman
FEMBRARAFEAFCRREE BREAERERS
KRS LM B IHENR AR - R=T—RFN
AZ=+7"H KAz 2 &N E2ARVongroup Investment
Holdings Limited([VIHL]) E2Claman&] 2 — 13 R s - &
It VIHLE (5145 R E 288 M Claman g (65 R 2817 R il %
Claman®29% 2 2 1TRE 7R (Claman 4922 48% M A& & A B 317
A& AR )+ AR {8 429,000,000 7T+ B B IR 1T E T R1.2428
TORC R J 3 1723,349,4360R A R AR M 2 « R ZF—7X
F+AtA8 - ARAFACaman1723,349,4360& B 15 27
BTBEHNKRTEESR.4ETHE  ARRFETRG
#) A F{E4938,293,000/8 7T o — F R IEH AN AR R HA A
ZE—ARFAAZFARAZAHA - AEEEREFIClaman
MNEEGXRASEARBZEKRE - AAREERA K
S @ Clamanl FE A2 B W &2 Hclamanty B 15
MEBRRAEZEN BEZS-EFMA=FHILF
& AT ERZELI339,0008 T ( —F—AF : X FEEELY
15,531,000/8 7T ) IR A F BT AR b 2 EUA TR

FEREMEEMARAFENRZEHEEN T _ZFMA
ST HRBYEEAEMESRRFRERAT(ZF—AF -
BREETEREFERLAA)ENEE ZFLTEFRELZ
RFEDENTENEETERERERKBEZMRRRMBUR
RenEMERNGE -HEERARANESHABEHRARE S
ME-ARREERR AREHEMEEZ B RIFEGIA
BAFBRRR) AREEATEZHGI AGRRAREGE
EWER)EEEE -

BRAFEFBZFHE  F2HGAMBRERMEE0 -

15, BBBRBRAFPEIGZERHEE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Mt FHT FHET

Listed equity securities R ES 15(a) 11,303 8,274
Unlisted debt securities — club memberships FLEMERES —SHTEHE 15(b) 1,550 1,650
12,853 9,924

Less: Non-current portion A EENERER (1,550) (1,650)
Amounts shown under current assets MEBEEHENIRZ &5 11,303 8,274

At 30 April 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk of those financial assets and there are no significant concentrations of

credit risk for those financial assets.

At the end of the reporting period, no investments had been exceeded 10% of the Group’s total

assets.

REZ-ZER-T-AFNA=1TH eREEZREERZ
SeRMAEZRRERARE YARZEEREETEEXNE
BERPREkE-

RBEHR TELKEBEARBRLEEZ10%



15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL (Continued)

15(a)

15(b)

Listed equity securities

At 30 April 2020 and 2019, the listed equity securities are listed in Hong Kong. The fair
values of the listed equity securities are determined on the basis of quoted market
closing bid prices available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of each reporting
period.

As disclosed in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, during the
year, the securities segment has recorded losses approximately HK$2,588,000 (2079:
approximately HK$1,554,000) in segment revenue from a fairly diversified portfolio
of listed equity securities at FVPL, held for trading purposes. Although there was an
decrease in asset value, this was almost entirely due to market-to-market unrealised
loss of approximately HK$2,589,000 (from decrease in market values) as at 30 April 2020
(2019: approximately HK$1,169,000), and realised loss transactions of approximately
HK$658,000 (2019: approximately HK$904,000).

These transactions did not constitute notifiable transactions pursuant to Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Unlisted debt securities — club memberships

The Group’s investment in club membership were revalued at 30 April 2020 and 2019
based on valuations performed by Roma Appraisal Limited (2079: APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited). The fair value of club membership was valued by using market
comparable approach.

N EEAR AT FiR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

15. ZRBEFBRAVEIIRZEMEEE)
15(a) LA RS
R-B-FFR-F-AFWASTA  LTRABERE

BLH e ERRABESZ 2 ATEDNEREPRENEHE
FR MR WHEANEEE

iR A IS MR RAMBE - F R 850 BN Rk
BT EERAKEEERATFEABREIIER EWRAZES

ZHEZ B A RN EEX2,588,0008 L ( = F—/NF - 4
1,554,000 ) - BEBEEBERL BETREE2RAR-Z
ZEFEN A=+ HRMEFERRE IR EE 42,589,000
TOREMERD N ZF—AF : 41,169,000 7) REE
BB 3T 5 #7658,0008 7T (= F —L4F - 47904,000/8 7T )

ZERGTERBIELTRAFUENATAMRZS

15b)F EHEBES -SHREE

AEBREMEEZREN _ZE_ZER_Z-NENA
=TANRBESERFEEARARD(=FE-NF ZXEF
EFEREMBRA ) ETHEEEREE - SMEEn
RV ERBHS L ERETHE

The movement of the club membership at FVPL is analysed as follows: BRATFEFABRZ BB EBHMMAT
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At the beginning of the reporting period REREHH) 1,650 1,650
Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEEERZ A EEE)FE (100) -
At the end of the reporting period R E R 1,550 1,650

16. FORFEITED COLLATERALS HELD FOR SALE

During the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, the Group obtained assets by taking possession
of collaterals held as security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 30 April
are summarised as follows:

16. FERRWIER @

BEZ-ZFERZ-NFUA=THLFE RAEEFELE
BREEROENRENEE NEA=ZTRZFEEZHEAR
FREEMRLT

2020 2019

—EZERF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Forfeited collaterals held for sale —a mix of gold and jewellery FEWERKIERR — =4 NHKEEA 289 723

The estimated market value of the repossessed assets held by the Group as at 30 April 2020 and
2019 was approximately to its carrying amount. It comprises gold and jewellery in respect of
which the Group has acquired access or control for release in full or in part of the obligations of

the borrowers.

REZE-FER-E-AFMA=+H AEEMFEKREEE
ZhEt S EERAREERS KB HASEE RS
BB ESRAZ RO BE LTS RIRE
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17. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

17. EEWERRR

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FHET T

Account receivables FEWERTR
From third parties REE=H 43,850 38,419
Less: Loss allowance EERE 29 (5,836) (4,778)
17(a) 38,014 33,641

17(a) Account receivables from third parties

The ageing of account receivables based on invoice date, net of loss allowance for ECL, at

17(a) FEWLSE = 75 BR X

REREMRBRERAH LN 2 BERRTREHEEES

the end of each reporting period is as follows: B EERE) ZBRRTEY T -
2020 2019
S —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 308 A 2,801 6,300
31 to 60 days 31HE60H 10,171 6,482
61 to 90 days 61HZ=90H 1,402 9,842
91 to 180 days 91H %1808 4,414 9,261
Over 180 days HiE180H 19,226 1,756
38,014 33,641

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of account receivables, net of loss
allowance for ECL, by due date is as follows:

REJEMARZEMA LI 2 BURR(INBEREEER
ZEERE) ZBRE D THIINT

2020 2019

—E-ZF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHAET

Not past due RigEf 17,026 31,531
Past due: BH

Less than 30 days 30HA 1,207 52

31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 706 52

61 to 90 days 61BZE90H 6,239 52

91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 1,997 1,954

Over 180 days HBiA180H 10,839 -

20,988 2,110

38,014 33,641

The Group generally allows an average credit period range from 30 to 180 days (2079: 30
to 180 days) to its customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, approximately of HK$18,920,000 (2079: Nil) of the
trade receivables were in connection with factoring arrangements to independent third
parties without recourse.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance on account

receivables are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

AEERBAEFEPEL ZFHEEHNFI0R=180H
(ZF—NF:30HF180A ) REBY BRZFHHITAT

Al AR G o

REBEE-_Z-_TFMA=+HIFE 418,920,000/ T (=
F-NF F)2EHRERERARTBIE=F2RER

PR RE) BRI

FHASEREKES AR EERRRBERBEZER
BN ERE BB RE29 ©



18. LOAN RECEIVABLES

18. EWE R

N EEAR AT FiR2020
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z-_ZFMA=1+HLEE

2020 2019

—EC-EF —E-NF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

lioe=3 FHET T

Loan receivables EWER

— Secured —BHEA - 458
— Unsecured — 4 1 30,454 11,241
30,454 11,699
Less: Loss allowance R EREE 29 (1,978) (1,742)
28,476 9,957

The loan receivables bear interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 30.0% (2079: 5.25% to 30.0%) per
annum and are repayable according to the respective loan agreements which usually cover
periods not more than one year.

a) Maturity profile

FE U E BB FE R RN F3.0%230.0% = F — A F : 5.25%6F
30.0%) WEARESBERBHEE L RERTBR—F-

a) FHER

30 April 2020 30 April 2019
—E_EFNA=tH —ET-NAFHEA=TH
Unsecured Unsecured

loan Secured loan loan  Secured loan
receivables  receivables Total receivables receivables Total

EIKA BER KA HIEA
EWER EWER st R ER B ER #aEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FAT FAT
Due within 1 month or on demand VE A AR H SR 2R EE 281 - 281 67 458 525
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 112 A 1418318 5 R E 3 318 - 318 25 - 25
Due after 3 months 29,855 - 29,855 11,149 - 11,149
30,454 - 30,454 11,241 458 11,699

b) Loan receivables that are not considered to he impaired are as follows: bh) AERABEZERERMOT :
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
“E-EHFNA=+H —E-NFMNA=1+H
Unsecured Unsecured

loan Secured loan loan  Secured loan
receivables  receivables Total receivables receivables Total

SRIEAR BER R AHEA
EWER BEWER st FEME R FENE R “Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHETT FAT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired KREEA TR ARE 30,180 - 30,180 11,241 87 11,328
Less than 1 month past due - - - - 291 291
1to 3 months past due - - - - 80 80
Over 3 months past due 274 - 274 - — _
30,454 - 30,454 11,241 458 11,699

As at 30 April 2020, the remaining secured loan receivables of nil (2079: approximately
HK$458,000) were secured by collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold and jewellery with
aggregate value of approximately nil (2019: approximately HK$905,000) which individually

has value over the respective remaining secured loan receivables.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance on loan
receivables are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIZZ-ZFWNA=1TH UEFNSGEEAEKER(=F

o) RERIEEBREE B BREERERER-

—PAN
=Aa

— L 494580008 ) A BB R(EZE AT M RETF &
S RKE)EER AEENZ(ZZ—NEF : 4905000

ERAKEREKE SRR EERRREREEZER
BRI TE29 ©
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19. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. BE  AARRR H B R AR

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

Mzt FHT T

Prepayments FARTERR 79 557
Rental and other deposits HeREMEZS 19(a) 15,730 15,733
Rental receivables Jligiska 1,158 609
Interest receivables FEUCRIE 1,556 1,621
Other receivables Hofth FEU AR X 19(b) 34,968 33,900
53,491 52,420

Less: Loss allowance B EREE 29 (7,263) (7,220)
46,228 45,200

19(a)

19(b)

Rental and other deposits

It included the refundable good faith deposits with carrying amount of approximately
HK$15,550,000 (2079: approximately HK$15,550,000), with corresponding loss allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$917,000 (2019: approximately HK$123,000), paid for
proposed investments for which the due diligence are still in progress. The deposits will
be refundable subject to the result of due diligence or a sole discretion right under the
Group on demand without clause.

Other receivables

Included in other receivables is carrying amount before ECL of approximately
HK$22,153,000 (2019: approximately HK$21,403,000), with corresponding loss allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$1,898,000 (2079: approximately HK$2,859,000), which
represents the right arising from termination of the investment in relation to Tian Da
Energy Holdings Limited. The debtor has agreed to transfer the title and ownership of
a property located in the PRC, which has an estimated market value of approximately
HK$20,808,000 at 30 April 2020 (2079: approximately HK$23,140,000) based on a
professional valuation conducted by AP Appraisal Limited (2079: APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited), to the Group for the settlement of the debt owing to the Group.
This debt is bearing a fixed interest at a rate of 5% per annum. The transfer of title and
ownership of the property to the Group is not yet completed up to the date of approving
these consolidated financial statements.

In addition to abovementioned, included in the balance of other receivables are
carrying amount before ECL of approximately HK$7,754,000 (2019: approximately
HK$7,754,000), with corresponding loss allowance for ECL of approximately HK$457,000
(2019: approximately HK$72,000), which represents the consideration receivables for
disposal of a financial asset at FVOCI, Partners K&K Limited (“PKKL”). PKKL is a company
incorporated in the Republic of Korea with limited liability to pursue investment and
institutional fund management related business. On 29 July 2018, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose all of the investment in PKKL to an
independent third party at a consideration of United States dollars (‘US$”) 1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,754,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance on deposits
and other receivables are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

190 HERHRS

HORERANEEZERBEZEHREINZATRER
B IREEAX15,550,00078 7L ( = — /14 : 4715,550,000
BT ) BIEHEEER 2 RSB EE A1917,0008 T (=
F—NF : £123,00087C ) ZHEEBRTRBEE 24

SRR EE 2 2 RIS RIRE R CPHEET) ®] FRE -

19(b) E fth FE KK 1E

EREMERERARZKRERACGEBENEEED
22,153,000 JT( = F — /L4 : £921,403,000 7T )+ 5 78 B
EEBEZHEBEREA%1898,0008 (= F—/LF :
#92,859,000/ 7T ) THIBIR IEBRKEERIERAR AT 2
BEMEAZEN BEHEACREBMRTEZMENP
Appraisal Limited( ZE—NF : EXEEFG RERBR A
F)REMER T _TFNA=- T AETEEGE G
T {8 4920,808,00078 70 ( = F — /L 4F © 423,140,000/ )) 2.
FERRBEAEERTASE WENEREAEEZER-
I EBIREGF5%2 EEM KT S - BEMEZFHRE VR
REE MASEERZME I EERERRE S RTH ©

B EaESN BEREMERGRBES AR ZBRESEEEE
AIBRE B 477,754,000 7T (= F— N 4F : 497,754,000/ 7T )
HEHEEE B 2 AEEBEEAL457,0008 T (ZF—N
F : £972,0008T) HIEHE —BEBEMEERARR
SEEIERE 2 4 f & EPartners K&K Limited ([PKKL]) 7 fEUL
REPKKLARABRBEGZMA I ZERRAR EFRE
MHEESEERBES -R_E—\FLA-TNLA XK
EE A E B LR E1,000,000% 7T ([ E T DAEERL
7,754,000/ 7T ) [l — R IB L 5 = 77 B ERPKKLZ 2 2R A -

FHEASEpRE REMRIGAERR 2 EERR MR
BRZANERRE M BMERM T
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BE-Z-_ZFNA=+HLEE

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. RITHBRRS
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Bank balances and cash IRITEB LIRS 19,600 32,436
Time deposits with original maturities less than three months [REEAE D R3E A 2 FE BifF K - 1,998
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of REEARBEERERCAE KRS EMEEE
cash flows 19,600 34,434
As at 30 April 2020, bank balances and cash in the PRC amounted to approximately RZBEZTFNA=+H RAEZRTEHLA LAY
HK$12,154,000 (2019: approximately HK$11,952,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC is 12,154,000 70 ( = F —AL4F © 4711,952,0008 L) 1 E S EEH
subject to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC government. Bl ASNE ST BB ie I 2 SNEE R 15 1 ©
21. ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED 21. B RERBWEZES
2020 2019
E-EF —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Accruals JERT IR 3,910 3,346
Accrued staff benefits FEAHE TA&F 3,788 1,888
Rental and other deposits received B E REMES 1,053 1,603
Valued-added tax and other tax payables FEHISER & E R 1E - 24
Other payables H & IR 935 214
9,686 7,075
22. BANK BORROWINGS 22. RITEE
At the end of the reporting period, the details of the bank borrowings of the Group are as RMERR  RE@MBITEEZFBOT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FAET
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-FEM 24,267 26,295
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings that are repayable (Note) EIRITIEE ZREE(AZ)
Within one year —FR 2,039 1,958
More than one year, but not exceeding two years BB —FEIRMER 2,086 2,007
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BBMFEERIRAFA 8,833 6,577
More than five years HBiBhF 11,309 15,753
24,267 26,295
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities W REAERE NHRNEE (24,267) (26,295)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities ERBEEBE T REE - -
Note: All bank borrowings contain a repayment on demand clause and are shown under Wiat - FERITEESR ﬁﬁgfﬁ EEERIREBEEETY
current liabilities. The amounts due are presented based on scheduled repayment dates ToRFHHeERBERBEIR A EEERSRE

set out in the loan agreements. 5l e
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22.

23.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22. RITEEE)
The ranges of interest rates on the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are as follows: KREBFABEEZFRGEMT ¢
2020 2019
—EZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Annual interest rates ranging from: FRENFUTEHE :
From 0.7% over 1-month HIBOR¥ to —{& A EBRITRZESRE M
2.5% per annum below prime rate 0.7EE FABEF|HF2.52 11,374 12,394
From 1.25% over 3-month HIBOR* to = A A BBRITEERF SN
2.7% per annum below prime rate 1.25E EHEBFEF27E 8,088 8,735
From 1.5% over 3-month HIBOR* to = A A BBRITEEFSMN
2.45% per annum below prime rate 1.5B ZEREEFEFK2.452 4,805 5,166
24,267 26,295
*  Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate * EBRITRAERS
The bank borrowings are drawn under banking facilities. The banking facilities are secured and RITEERRITAHE ZH  RITAE AT 77 AEEA
guaranteed by:
(i) investment properties of the Group with an aggregate net carrying amount at the end of the () FAIREEREBREFEL121,257,00080( = F—F - 4
reporting period of approximately HK$121,257,000 (2019: approximately HK$121,100,000) 121,100,000/ 7T ) AR S EIR E W (HE12): K
(Note 12); and
(i) Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount at the end of the (i) AHREHREREFEL1,6160008 (= F—F - 49
reporting period of approximately HK$11,616,000 (2019: approximately HK$12,044,000) 12,044,000/ ) T E + b R AEF (BI5E11)
(Note 11).
All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to subsidiaries’ FIARITRENAGHEINBARZ L R(ENETBHRAER)E
ratios based on their statements of financial position, as are commonly found in lending B ERE AR ES EERRESRBEII Y 2ERL
arrangements with financial institutions. If the subsidiaries were to breach the covenants, the PR o B ARIERZH MR RIAMEBEREREE-
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand. In addition, the subsidiaries’ loan WM B AT Z ERBEEER TEHR AN 2R ISHERS
agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand BRANEEE RAVER . M wmHl B AR RS Ol TRHE METT
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether the subsidiaries have complied with BlBRER-

the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants and has made payments AREBFHERLEBTIZERZNBER 25— BIR:T2EER
according to the schedule of the loans and does not consider it probable that the banks will AEFIRERABAEEEEETZSHT  BABRK 4
exercise its discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet these TEEREEERER NEEEBEABSERR 2 —FF15%
requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 29 NN A HRERME29 - RS- EFR T AFMNA=~
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, none of the covenants A -#EErmAnielmEsEnEs-

relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

DEFERRED TAXATION 23. BEHRE

The following is the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the years WTAREBE T -_ZFEL T NAFENA=THIFEDHE

ended 30 April 2020 and 2019. RBEEREABEREES) -
Unrealised fair value
change in investment
properties
REMEZ
RERAFERE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 May 2018 RZZE—N\FHEA—A 801
Charge to profit or loss REBZEAR 95
At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 RZE-NFEA=TEERZZ-—NFHA—H 896
Credit to profit or loss A ABE (36)
At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-TFMA=+A 860
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated unused tax losses of approximately RIEEHAR  NEBEGHER AB AT EEE4110,179,000/8 7T
HK$110,179,000 (2019: approximately HK$119,843,000) available for offset against future profits, (ZE— N - #7119,834,000% 77 ) 7] AR S AR B F) - AR
no deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. AIFEAN AR REF T MY ERRRECRIBEE - APHEAREESR

The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. A 4 IR A o
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SHARE CAPITAL 24, IR
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
R EE FHT EeGEEeE! FAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each AR E1E0.04/8 T2 EiBAR
At the beginning and the end of the IR B R B R
reporting period 5,000,000,000 200,000 5,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHEE
At the beginning and the end of the IR B R B R
reporting period 192,189,833 7,688 192,189,833 7,688

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including non-executive directors, employees of the Group, any other groups or classes
of suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and the Company’s shareholders
determined by the directors of the Company as having contributed or who may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
remains in force for 10 years from that effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon the payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date
to be notified by the directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted. There is no minimum holding
period before an option may be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors of the Company, but may
not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings. No share options under the Scheme were granted and outstanding during the years
ended 30 April 2020 and 2019.
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26. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(d)

(1)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve relates the property reclassified from owner-occupied to
investment properties. For such reclassifications, the accumulative increase in fair value
at the date of reclassification in excess of any previous impairment losses is included in
the property revaluation reserve and will be transferred to retained earnings upon the
retirement or disposal of the relevant property.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which the Company’s issued
share capital has been diminished on the cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be applied
by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allocated to shareholders of the
Company as fully-paid bonus shares.

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the articles of association of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to the shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital in proportion to their existing shareholdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation of
financial assets at FVOCI recognised in other comprehensive income less those cumulative
gains and losses recycled and transfers amounts from this reserve to accumulated losses
upon derecognition of financial assets of FVOCI.

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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27. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

28.

29.

FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The movements of the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:
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27. GERERERZBEHER

BMETHEEZBEZHIER
AEERMEFHEE 2 BEZEBHOT

Bank borrowings

RITHEE

HK$'000

T

At 1 May 2018 RZZ—-N\FHRA—H 28,188

Finance costs BARS AR AR 640
Cash outflow in financing activities: RMEEBZHE ML

Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (1,893)

Interest paid BEAFE (640)

At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 R-B-hWFNA=+HER=Z-—HhFHEA—AH 26,295

Finance costs BFRS AR 679
Cash outflow in financing activities: REEB RS RE:

Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITEE (2,028)

Interest paid BRI (679)

At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-ZTFMA=+A 24,267

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to those transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties during
the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019:

28. BEALRS

(a) BRGEAMBHREREMMTARENR S, BRI AEEH
REE-ZT_TFR-_FT-NAFUNA=+THILFENEH
BATETUTRS

2020 2019

—g=%F —E-nE

Name of related company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000

BEALERE THUE FHET FAT

Vongs Corporate Services Limited (Note (i) Professional and corporate secretarial service fee (Note (ii)) 78 250
Vongs Corporate Services Limited (#7132(i)) BELARWERSE S (M:2)

Technology & management service fee income (Note (ii)) - (985)

T R TR BR S B MR (B2 i)

Notes:

(i)  This related company is controlled by a close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong
David.

(i) These related party transactions constituted connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

(b) Remuneration for key management personnel (i.e. directors) of the Group

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of account receivables, loan receivables,
deposits and other receivables, bank balances and cash, financial assets at FVPL, financial assets
at FVOCI, accruals and other peyables and bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk including (interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group also monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 29. MBEREEEERBRE)

ERMTAZEABREAN TIIRE :

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Financial assets

Financial assets

Financial assets

At 30 April 2020 at amortised cost at FVPL at Fvocl Total
ERER 2EBA
R8RS iR EAFETIE BAFETIE
R-BE-ZTFMAB=+H ZERMEE ZEMEE ZEMEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FHET
Assets BE
Equity investment at FVOCI FEREMEERANZAFEERZ
AT E - - 23,808 23,308
Club membership at FVPL FEREREATEIEZSHEHE - 1,550 - 1,550
Account receivables FEWER K 38,014 - - 38,014
Loan receivables FEWE 28,476 - - 28,476
Deposits and other receivables e REAM KRR 46,149 - - 46,149
Listed equity securities at FVPL FEREREAFEYEZ ERRAE - 11,303 - 11,303
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 19,600 - - 19,600
Total ‘st 132,239 12,853 23,808 168,900
Financial
liabilities at
amortised costs
RE S R AR B BR
ZeMeR
HK$’000
FET
Liabilities =L
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H M FE S FRIB 8,633
Bank borrowings RITIEE 24,267
Total “st 32,900
Financial assets Financial assets Financial assets
At 30 April 2019 at amortised cost at FYPL at FvoCl Total
BipEa ZHEKBA
BB HKATIER BAFETER ZATFETER
—NEMA=+H JEREE JEREE ZERMEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FHT
Assets BE
Equity investment at FVOCI FEREMEERAZAFETEREZ
A& - - 24,139 24,139
Club membership at FVPL EREREATEYEZSHER - 1,650 - 1,650
Account receivables JEHAR K 33,641 - - 33,641
Loan receivables MR E K 9,957 - - 9,957
Deposits and other receivables e REAEWERR 44,643 - - 44,643
Listed equity securities at FVPL FERBERIZAFENEZ ERAE - 8,274 - 8,274
Bank balances and cash RITESRNIRS 34,434 - - 34,434
Total st 122,675 9,924 24,139 156,738
Financial
liabilities at
amortised costs
TR P AT BR
ZEmaR
HK$'000
FHET
Liabilities 8&
Accruals and other payables FERT AIE&EHJ@J'EHM 5,448
Bank borrowings RITEE 26,295
Total EEy 31,743



29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Except for interest-bearing bank deposits, loan receivables, certain other receivables and bank
borrowings, the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. Bank deposits and bank borrowings are carried at floating rates and certain other
receivables and loan receivables are carried at fixed rates.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest risks and
the Group’s interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group’s bank borrowings.
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29. BEBEEEERBEK ()
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The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank borrowings at the end of TRFNAER ZIRTEENREIRZ MR -
the reporting period:
2020 2019
—E_BF —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
GRS FET YIRS FHET
Variable rate borrowings BEFREE
Bank borrowings RITEE 1.9-2.6 24,267 1.1-2.6 26,295

At 30 April 2020, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit before tax by approximately HK$243,000 (2079: approximately
HK$263,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The 1% increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly carried in Hong Kong and the PRC. Operating subsidiaries
within the Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the operating
subsidiaries’ functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the
management of the Group monitors its foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedges
should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to foreign
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating subsidiaries to which they relate. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in Hong Kong denominated in RMB and US$. As HK$ is pegged to
US$, the Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between HK$ and US$ to be
insignificant for transactions denominated in US$. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
RMB. The Company is not exposed to material currency risk at the end of the reporting period.

RZZZTFRA=+A HHmEF RGN 1% 85m L
D0 SR B BR A B 5 F) £0243,00078 70 (= F — L - £9263,000/%
JT)e

FRBREES T TBREZFERRERRER LB MEE - LEA
N AMEEZIFITER B TR ZFIRER - Z 1% B ingm
HEBRENEMERMANET —EFERSHRAER LR

2B -BEZT-AFMA=TEILFEZHIRAERAEE
57
HERR

AEEzEBTEERBRTE - REBMET 2 2 EME QR
AR ZAMERE  RBEFNEERBARZNEEEHEZS
ERELXSRENEEAAE -

AR SR (B3R B I S AE (R AR BROMNE S0 - AR B 2 B R B R A
FERB - W E BAER B h o

TRADFAEERRERRZEBLENBRTDEEBIAIN
ERHECEMREERABEMELZINERR - ZERBES
ERBBUARBREEXTAHEZERZE o8B EXTTH
9 AEERRHRUAETHELR M E  BEEETZHE
KEPERETERN - ELEUARNEEETRZARE AR F
RBERRLEMEERE KRR -

2020 2019
—EDEF T -NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Overall exposure arising from recognised assets and liabilities:
Bank balances and cash: BITER LIRS
kB AR

EHREERBEMEEZ

B

2,088 1,399
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29.

ToEFNA=THLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s profit before tax in response
to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

29. BEBEEEERBEK ()
SMERB(E)
Ti‘%iﬁﬂ'ﬁ\ﬁiﬁﬂﬁkﬂ»‘%l?ﬁ%xiﬁﬂ

R INEERZ B8
AEEEE) ML AEBMBHANE R HR 2 MOEE)

2020 2019
—E_BF —E-NF

Increase Increase

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in foreign
exchange rate HK$’000 exchange rate HK$'000

SNEE=R SN [
EORS) FHET EMORD) FET
RMB AR 5% 104 5% 70
(5%) (104) (5%) (70)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure to
currency risk for non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency
represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments of trading
securities classified as listed equity securities at FVPL.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the stock market index and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs.

BREDITHRRZIMNEERRRERR R LB MR - LEA
RAEERZBREEITERITEF B TAZ BRE
PR R BB R RM ) RISTE - JIh 2 ZEIRE 2 E TG
HNEEENHANET —EFERENRAEATEER 2 EH &
E-T-AFMA=TRIEFEZ AN IRABRELEETT

IRAE R

$‘§l@ BOBREBRERATEIELTRAESR ZEE
EHFNEFREFEENRABERLEER

AEEZ EHEFRERBRA LT BEXMEETESFZR
ENERSRERENEFAHRBEREM SRR LA MITERE
BZRBAURAEBEZ RBESFTRMIEL

At 30 April 2020, it is estimated that a change of 5% (2079: 5%) in the relevant stock market index RZE-TFNA=+TH ZHARETSER(ELETEREM
(for listed investments), with all other variables held constant, would have changed the Group’s SIEESU( T —NF %) MATE BB SN EE  haT A%
profit before tax as follows: E2BRBANGEFEG I T RTRES -
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in
equity price HK$’000 equity price HK$'000
RAERE AR A (E %
EMORD) FHT EmORL) FHET
Changes in the relevant equity price risk HERERERGE B
variable:
Increase 0 5% 565 5% 414
Decrease L (5%) (565) (5%) (414)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably possible changes in
the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is
also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant stock market index
or the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market
index or the relevant risk variables over the period until the end of the next annual reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year ended 30 April 2019.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
account receivables, loan receivables, deposits and other receivables, and bank balances and
cash. At 30 April 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk, which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for all account receivables and applies general
approach to assess ECL on other financial assets at amortised cost including loan receivables and
deposits and other receivables. To measure the ECL, loan receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arises when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers.

In respect of account receivables, and deposits and other receivables, the Group’s exposure to
credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each debtor. The default
risk of the industry and country in which debtors operate also has an influence on credit risk.
At the end of the reporting period, other than the account receivables gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$43,850,000 (2079: approximately HK$38,419,000) (Note 17) as discussed
below, the gross carrying amount of the refundable deposits of approximately HK$15,550,000
(2019: approximately HK$15,550,000) (Note 19), the gross carrying amount of other receivables
of approximately HK$22,153,000 (2079: approximately HK$21,403,000) (Note 19) and the gross
carrying amount of loan receivables of approximately HK$30,454,000 (2079: approximately
HK$11,699,000) (Note 18) as discussed below, the Group has no other significant concentrations
of credit risk which individual balance at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 April 2020, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as approximately 15% (2079. 10%)
of the total account receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and approximately
62% (2019: 38%) of the total account receivables was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

At 30 April 2020, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as approximately 26% (2019: 67%)
of the total loan receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and approximately 77%
(2019: 96%) of the total loan receivables was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

Account receivables and deposits and other receivables

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit terms. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as to the economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
of the Group reviews the recoverability of each trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
applies simplified approach on account receivables to provide for the ECL prescribed by HKFRS
9. The Group measures loss allowances for account receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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BEBIZEHRAZMERFEATE - BEHEALERETERSR
RZBHBERITZEEERR -RBEHRAKR R T X w85
B 47 .543,850,0007% 7T 2 FEUBR (= F — L4 - 4938,419,000
JEIL)(M5E17) - #BRE (A 49515,550,00078 L 2 AJ iRIEL € (=
F—AEF : #715,550,000;8 7T )(Hi3E19) 42 BREIE ) /22,153,000
BT B EWGRIB( = F—A4F © £921,403,0007% ¢ )(Ki5E19)
K 48 PR B 4 530,454,0008 T2 EWEBER(=ZF—NLF - 4
11,699,000/ 7T )(MI5518) 5N - AR E B R s HAR I A B 4584 2
HinEREEREBREFRIEN -

RZZ-ZENA=+H AEEEEERBRERER £15%
(ZF—NF 10%)NERERAEARRAEERTAES 2K
B AR HI62%( = F —/LF - 38%) N EW R R B AR AEE
AREEZIE

R-ZZF-ZZENA=+TR AREBAEERRETER  £26%
(ZFB—NF : 67%) NEREREBRBRARERAE P 2K
B ARKT77%( = F—JL9F : 96%) MW E BB RN A EE
AREFPZHE.

JEWRRF A Rz R M JER R

SRR E A BXREGEER 2 EFEL - BRIFTRES
REFBEXNIHFRZ B8 AR BAXNZ8EN Lt R
EPRBZEPARN KBRS

REGERBBRERE FEEEREEETR—XEAKAEET
EERE FHEERRTEMESREFIARR KD S HET
ERERETE - b AEBMEEER S REPRENZAE
BMERS 2 FIUR B £ 3R - PARETE st AT R Bl & B AR R 40 2 R (E S
B AREH B ERRRBECE  NIRE BB RS %R
FEORATRERTEHEE BRI - ARERESNENE
HEEBERZ ST ERIRRZBREE FRSEHERR
BREAE B RAREELEEERERMER  TRAE
Fomz BEEATEBENR  RENBEBPREED 2B
BRETEE - SRAKETRAEFPEREES -
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BECEZ-EFNA=TALFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Account receivables and deposits and other receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for
account receivables as at 30 April 2020 and 2019.

29. BEBEEEERBEK ()

FERRE)

JEWIEA A Rt RE M JEW

()

TEREHEEASEN _Z_Z2FR_Z-NAFNOA=1+A#
JEUERAFIERZ 2 EERR N ERREEHRZEH |

At 30 April 2020 R-E-FEFWNFA=+H
Gross carrying
Past due ECL rate amount  Loss allowance Credit-impaired
bl BHEEEEXR BERMEE BiERE FEERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Not past due R EA 0.01 17,028 W] No &
1 - 30 days past due B EA1230H 0.41 1,212 (5) No &
31— 60 days past due BE31E608 0.84 712 (6) No &
61— 90 days past due #HA61290H 1.25 6,318 (79) No &
91 — 180 days past due #HA91%180H 2.59 2,050 (53) No &
Over 180 days past due BHARRIBE180H 34.43 16,530 (5,691) Yes 2
43,850 (5,836)
At 30 April 2019 REZFE-NFMA=+H
Gross carrying
Past due ECL rate amount Loss allowance  Credit-impaired
wE TEHREEEEX BIREE EEEE FEDRE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Not past due Nt 1.16 31,902 371) No &
1 - 30 days past due mEA1Z30H - 52 - No &
31— 60 days past due #EA31Z60H - 52 - No &
61— 90 days past due #H61290H - 52 - No &
91 - 180 days past due #H391%180H 10.37 2,180 (226) No &
Over 180 days past due A HARRIE180H 100.00 4,181 (4,181) Yes =&
38,419 (4,778)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 29. MBEREEEERBRE)

Credit risk (Continued) FEERE(E)

JEWAR A R Iz R JEH IR ()

Account receivables and deposits and other receivables (Continued)

At 30 April 2020, the Group recognised net loss allowance of approximately HK$1,098,000 (2079: RIZZZZTFNA=1+B A5EERKBEYE BEERREBZE
approximately HK$4,597,000) for deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, g4  EWERRA RIS R E WA R ERREFED
account receivables and deposits and other receivables. The movement in the loss allowance is 1,098,00078 7T ( —FE— A4 : 494,597,000% T ) FiiEEE 2 2 F)
summarised below. BEREAT -

Deposits paid for
acquisition of

property, plant Account Deposits and
and equipment receivable other receivables Total
WX - BE
RREz RER
gffRe FEUBR R Hitb R E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHETT
At 1 May 2018 R-ZE—-N\FHEA—H 3 2,512 4,889 7,404
Increase in allowance B - 2,592 2,349 4,941
Amounts recovered BlE£E - (326) (18) (344)
At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 —NFEHA=+AK
—ET-hFRA—H 3 4,778 7,220 12,001
Increase in allowance BEAEIE N - 1,847 1,411 3,258
Amounts recovered BltE&E - (789) (1,368) (2,157)
Amounts written off Mis&EE (3) - - (3)
At 30 April 2020 R-E-TFMA=+A - 5,836 7,263 13,099

Account receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than agreed contract terms.

Impairment losses on account receivables are presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historic data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
account receivables and deposits and other receivables are set out in Notes 17 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The management monitored the financial background and creditability of those debtors on an
ongoing basis. The Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties which have
good credit history. In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

JE U BR R & TR B LB R R B SOR B SE - )R A R IR IR AT
RIEZ PR (E A B BB AREE EA S E R SRR E
AR BRI E A S HIR 2 IR A REEEH A O -

FEUPRF 2 B R R TIPS RN A2 AR EB R FE - L&
U B SERT D s 2 8 AR A —F1TRE AEE -

BEHEEFREDERBE=FZERBRERET - %SHR
R R DA SR M SR TR S BB B R 2 A RO - TR R
AEBEEREEFRRF FHRZLBERR TR MNER -

BRAEEREURESR LIRS AR EMERFIRREAZZEE
B2 —FEERE D RIBMR A B RERME17R19

EREREGREZEEBACHBESRERARE -AREEBHE
BERHEEEL 2 RGHTFETRS Lxmgﬁﬂfiﬁﬂﬂw?f
s EEERAAEEZEERAREAEHE-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9 ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a general approach model to calculate their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach that incorporates key measurement
parameters, including probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default, with the
consideration of forward-looking information.

At 30 April 2020, the management assessed credit quality of individual money leading customers
with reference to historical payment information. Based on the assessment, loan receivables with
amount approximately of nil (2079: HK$73,000) recognised to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income was credit impaired.

The analysis of changes in the gross amount and the corresponding provision for impairment of
loan receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follow:

29. BEBEEEERBEK ()

FERRE)
JEWE

AEBEAEEMBRELNESRRREEHERIGERD
FEEER AEEFHRKER 2 EERRE NS BBLREE KR
i WM - AREELG HFARMEEER ERERAE
EHRFB2B(BEENIRE BHBRXIEDRR)NE
BRABIREDAY Z BRI IR ST AR ERE -

RIZE-ZFNA=+H EREL2ZBENRERTHER
Eﬁﬂagﬁsz’g% B NEARERA 2 ERERE

RZEWERNTHBL(ZE—NF - 73,0008 7) B HREER
@a
BEERERZ BENRERER 2 BEREREZZH DT
U

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

At 30 April 2020 12-month ECL (Performing) (Underperforming) Total
R-ZZB-ZEFMA=+H 2 HTEH 2HES
128 A FEH EEER EEEE
FEEBR (&%) (TF/E#) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FATT FHET
Gross carrying amount BREAEE 30,180 - 274 30,454
Less: Loss allowance o ERRE (1,905) - (73) (1,978)
28,275 - 201 28,476
At 30 April 2019 —NWFHEA=+H
Gross carrying amount SR ARE 11,241 - 458 11,699
Less: Loss allowance o ERRE (1,669) - (73) (1,742)
9,572 - 385 9,957

As at 30 April 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance of HK$1,978,000 (2079: HK$1,742,000)
on its loan receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for loan receivables during the year
is summarised below.

RZZE-ZTFMNA=+H"
1,978,000 7L( = FE— /14 -
BRESEHHMMT -

AEEGEEREREREBEE
1,742,000/8 7T ) - F N FEWR B K 2 5

2020 2019

—E_ZF —ZE-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

At the beginning of the reporting period RIS EA 1,742 1,660

Increase in allowance el 239 225

Amounts recovered B2 4y [l & 58 3) (143)

At the end of the reporting period PR ER 1,978 1,742

Bank balances RITHRR

In respect to the Group’s deposit with bank, the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing RAEEZRITERME  AEEBBEREHRRABRFEE

deposits with financial institution with high credit rating and no recent history of default.
Given the high credit ratings of the banks, management does not expect any counterparty
to fail to meet its obligations. Management will continue to monitor the position and will
take appropriate action if there are changed. As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk in relation to deposit with bank.

In these regards, other than the credit risks mentioned above, the management considers the
Group does not have any other significant credit risk and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

%&HL%@I%L%’%E%?ZM%%%% VAR | B 2 (R R
ERZSERTEARERETE EEERATEAEARZEF
BERTHEME EREMTESETMNRR - WEFRE LR
4& BERREETH R-ZE_TFR-_ZF-AFNA=+H"
AEBWERRITERRISEETZEERAR -

MU E B EERRN ERERRSAEE L EEREAM
BAEERR MAERZZZEEERRDTAFEER




29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group’s other financial assets at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk,
and loss allowance recognised during the year was therefore limited to 12-month expected
losses. The other financial assets are considered to be low credit risk when they have a low
probability of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for its own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demand, subject to board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants to ensure that
it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Group
relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.

The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on current
rates at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

FAREARAR FR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z-ZFNA=1+HLEE

29. BEBEEEERBEK ()

FERBE)
BB AT EZ B ML BEE

AEERBERAHEZMAEMEREEDWRABRER
BB ERIE  SEARR BREGERM2EARSER - KA
HEREEZENXREERTANEHINEERRETEN
REREBRBHERENN HREAEERERRIE -

REESER

AEERNSBILLERRATARRSEETE BEASA
BTERHRERSHETARNERRGF L EAkEFE Y
AR AEE  AREBRATHERNANIENRDE S
FRETERRE UERAERAVRERERNIZER
BERBRAZRLESHE UWENHERLRARDHEST
Ko AEBKBRITERABERRDE DRI

NTznBEeRRRAAENGHARBRAZRERB/EEL
AEESBAERBSHRZHRTANIR(BERANTRL
(WAZBFE)NRERRIRHNERGFEZMENK) UK
AEEAHERNRZEFHY -

Total contractual

Total carrying undiscounted On demand or
amount cash flow less than 1 year
BHREER RERR
IR E RERBRE PR—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FAET

At 30 April 2020 R-E-ZFWA=+H
Accruals 3,910 3,910 3,910
Accrued staff benefits 3,788 3,788 3,788
Other payables Hith e (4 53R 935 935 935
Bank borrowings (Note) IRITEE (Aat) 24,267 24,267 24,267
32,900 32,900 32,900

At 30 April 2019 RZE-NEFEMA=1+H
Accruals f 3,346 3,346 3,346
Accrued staff benefits JE 1,888 1,888 1,888
Other payables H b fETRRIA 214 214 214
Bank borrowings (Note) WITERE (M) 26,295 26,295 26,295
31,743 31,743 31,743

Note:

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand or
less than 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2020, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$24,267,000 (2079:
approximately HK$26,295,000). Taking into account of the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements, as follows.

M ERERERGARZRITEELE LRI BHADITHRA
[BRERS DR —F ] 2BEBRN - R_E_TFMA=1H"
ZERTEEZ BRABENA24,267,0008 T(ZFE—NF : 49
26,295,000 7T ) #8 5t R AN KB 2 BIEIRR R AR EEZR AR
TR RATE RIS EREI RN - AR R ERR R ZFRIT
EBEEBREERDEMBATIECERBEER -
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29.

30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

29. BEBEEEERBEK ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRR(E)
Set forth below is the maturity analysis on the term loans subject to a repayment on demand ATEYERERERREEECERNERZ THE R ZFIH
clause based on scheduled repayments. DT e
Total
Total contractual On demand
carrying undiscounted or less than
amount cash flow 1year 1to2years 2to5years Over5 years
BHREER RERR
AREE RERER DPRA—F 1224 2E545F 5EHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFWMA=+AH
Bank borrowings RITEE 24,267 27,401 2,574 2,574 10,297 11,956
At 30 April 2019 RZZE-NFEA=1+H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26,295 29,967 2,583 2,641 6,992 17,751
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 30. AFEFE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose
their fair value in these financial statements on a recurring basis across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value
measurement categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. The levels of inputs are defined as follows:

«  Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

«  Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

«  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(@) Fair value of the Group’s investment properties that are measured at fair value

NTREFINBREFEVHEREZMNFBRAFEFETELZ
DRPESEH=ERFA B FEFBRENZETEREAR
REHAERBAANTEZEERAE BREATENBREY
HEHEMs BEAZKEBRABIRET Y E - BABEZR
BIEEMT :

o E-R(EBHAN) : AEERHEAHIREHEREELS
BRERMIG L2 AR EABORERE)

o B FAMEREMENN EAEREENERSER
EBRMS2BABE R

o F=R(RERD): BEXABZ AR EREAZE-
(@) AEERQAVEFBZRENEZDTE

Fair value

measurements
categorised into
Level 3
PEEE=HMN
AFEFE
HK$’000
FExT
At 30 April 2020 R-E-ZFMA=+AH
Commercial properties BEYE
— Hong Kong -&8 110,667
- The PRC — 7,536
Residential properties 1FEYE
- Hong Kong -&B 110,045
- Macau — P 17,180
245,428
At 30 April 2019 RZT-NFMA=+H
Commercial properties EEYE
— Hong Kong —&E 113,200
— The PRC — 8,721
Residential properties TEYE
— Hong Kong — &% 107,300
— Macau — R 17,476

246,697



30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

()

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties that are measured at fair value
(Continued)

During the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur. The details of the movements of the fair value measurement categorised as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

FAREARAR FR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

RE M EHmRMETE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z_ZFNA=THLEE

DR EFEE)
(@) AEERQATVEFEZRENEZDITVEE)

HAESzi TEFRIE-NAFHEAZTHILEFE E—&

Z&ZFEJIHE%% TMEFAKBHE =R AEEZ
E&ﬁ%??ﬁiiﬁztﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ% @@%“ZL%Z
FE-DERATESAFE=R2ZA i@ﬁ'iz FIEE
T

Commercial C cial Residential Residential

properties in property in the  properties in property in
Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong Macau Total

REBZ R EZ REEZ ARz
[GEL/ES [GE27ES FEME EEmE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FHET
At May 2018 R-ZZE—NFHA—H 104,500 8,889 102,000 16,684 232,073
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% - (517) - (179) (696)
Fair value change N EES 8,700 349 5,300 971 15,320

At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 RZZE-NFUNA=+AK

—ZE-NFRA—H 113,200 8,721 107,300 17,476 246,697
Exchange realignment Rk (508) - - (508)
Fair value change NEEES (2,533) (677) 2,745 (296) (761)
At 30 April 2020 R-Z-ZFNA=+H 110,667 7,536 110,045 17,180 245,428

Fair value of the Group’s other financial assets that are measured at fair value

(b) AEEZRAFPEABZAEMGEREEZAFE

Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at 30 April hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs
SREE ROA=+HZATE NREER RERM R EEEmABE
2020 2019
SE L —E-nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets at FVPL
EBEREAFEIERZ
SREE
Equity securities
— listed in Hong Kong 11,303 8,274 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
A B % E— BTS2 WE
-y Asil
Club memberships 1,550 1,650 Level 3 Market comparable range from
HK$105,000 to HK$1,550,000 as at 30 April 2020
(2019: HK$112,000 to HK$1,750,000)
and individual second quotation prices of
club memberships
BEE B4 R _TFNA=+AMSATLERERNT
105,000/ 721,550,000 70 (= F— /L4 : 112,000 7T
21,750,000 7T oA R &R EEE 2 (AN E —IRR(E
Financial assets at FVOCI
EBHEMB2EBA
RAVEIGZEMEE
Unlisted equity investments 23,808 24,139 Level 3 Income approach: discounted cash flow with discount
rates ranging from 12.2% to 17.6% (2019: 18% to 18.5%)
FEETIRAZE FE=H WAOE  BRBRIRE AR - B ENF12.2%E17.6%

(ZZF—N4F : 18%218.5%)
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30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 30. AFEFE#E)

(b) Fair value of the Group’s other financial assets that are measured at fair (b) AEERAVEAEZHMUESBEEZATEE)

value (Continued)

During the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 HEZZ-F
and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements in both years. The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Financial assets

FET

Financial assets

ER-F—NFNA=+EILFE RREAF
ERNE-RRE-GATEHEZ ML EEE NEFAR
W E=RATEN 8- PEALTESRES R @R
ATEHEZ 2

Year ended 30 April 2020 at FVPL at FvocCl Total
Club Unlisted equity
memberships investments
EiBER FEBHM2EBA
RAFEIEZ BRAFEIEZ
BE-_Z-_ZFMA=THLEE SREE SRMEE st
BFYE FETRAERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
At the beginning of the reporting period AR ERH 1,650 24,139 25,789
Net changes in fair value N EZE)FE
in profit or loss REBEA (100) - (100)
in other comprehensive income REMZEBAR - (331) (331)
At the end of the reporting period RIRERKR 1,550 23,808 25,358
Financial assets Financial assets
Year ended 30 April 2019 at FVPL at Fvocl Total
Club Unlisted equity
memberships investments
HEiBEE FEiREAM 2 ERA
RATESEZ BAFESRZ
HEZZT-NFRA=THILFE TREE TREE “eEt
BEE I EMRAIEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET
At the beginning of the reporting period IR EHAFT) 1,650 47,754 49,404
Net changes in fair value Hih 2 mBWARD T EZS)FHE
in other comprehensive income - (15,861) (15,861)
Derecognised of financial assets at FVOCI BURERBBEMEEIRA
BATEIEZERMEE - (7,754) (7,754)
At the end of the reporting period RERE AR 1,650 24,139 25,789
(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other (0 ZEFZRATFEUNMIEZEHEERSRHEEZQATE

than fair value

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis. The
management of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 31. ERERE

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. AR & AR ©
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

AEEEREARZ BHORREAEEGE
REEHEAEMESTA ARG WS SEEARREN

AEEEREEBERB RN - et IR HEK AT
ZERMEERERABBEIAFE-ARETEERR N
BUBRARNZEHRAINEZ EBEERERARBL
FREEREAFERBS -

mEZREN LNRBRR

AEEATUBBAEINTRRZRELH BEEATRESL
BITHBOR GBS AL AR RS -
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BE-Z-_ZFNA=+HLEE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 31. EREE (&)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as total K%@EE%%%W%KQK BELERTIREE IR R AT
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. TZEERERNGRRHE R_T_TFR_T—NFHEA
The gearing ratios as at 30 April 2020 and 2019 were as follows: —t+HzAELRENT -
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Total borrowings — bank borrowings WEE—RITEE 24,267 26,295
Total equity Mg 391,650 383,076
Gearing ratio afEl®x 0.06 0.07
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. TEMBATZHEE
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets and liabilities RIZZZZFRZFT-NFHNA=TH HEARRZEE BE

as at 30 April 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Issued and fully paid share

&EEE%%ZI;W%Q BZFBRINMT :

Percentage of equity interest

Name of subsidiary operation capital/registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
3o A
MEAR AR RIREE®R BRTRBERE ZMER ARREERERDL FTEEK
2020 2019
ZECEF —E-NEF
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HiE (53 B L3
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - 100 - Financial services businesses
BB 100,00077T ERRBEB
Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 - Trading of Securities
RN ERAR 5 18T HHREE
Vongroup Consumer Finance British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Corporation
RERRES —REEIETEER REER
Vongroup Financial Services Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - 100 - Investment holding
RERRES —REEIETEER REER
Vongroup Investment Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - 100 -~ Investment holding,
Limited technology & management
and related activities
RBRLHS —REEIETEBR RERER ST RERIAR
HEEE
VG Investment Assets Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - 100 -~ Investment holding
Incorporated
EERAHE —REEIETERR REZR
Allex Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
&5 187 WX
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

32. TEMBARZHEEE)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Issued and fully paid share

Percentage of equity interest

Name of subsidiary operation capital/registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities

AL,
Fft B 2 B) B B RYIREEHY CERTRBEZRE ZEMELR AREEERERDL FEEK

2020 2019
—g-%f e
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HiE (53 B L3
BlackPod Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Technology & management
and related activities

=k 18T Bl R BB RARRE B
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
REBXERAA 55 18T MEE
Champmark Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
REERAF 5 18T MEER
Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business

e 1T MEED
House2buy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 - 100 Property business
BEXFGNEBRAA RBRAHS —REEIETEER MERE
Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
REBARRA 5 1B MERE
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
RElREBRAR =k 1B MEE
Unitech Properties limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
HEBXERAA &k 1B MEE
United Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
o ¥l NG| 55 1B MEE
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property business
FhERAR AR 5 1B MEE
Golden Throne Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 - 100 Technology & management

and related activities

EEELHE —REEIETERK BT R EE AR ABREE)
Vongroup Life Sciences Corporation  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 - 100 Investment Holding

EEELHE —REEIETERK BEER
Vongroup Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 - 100 Investment Holding

Corporation

RERLHE —REE1ZET T B REER

it R ER PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 - 100 Financial services businesses
RMB10,000,000 (Notes (i) and (iii))
+ BB RAARE RIS ER
10,000,0007T (A7a2(1) % iii))
ERRERACEINABRAT PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 - 100 Financial services businesses
(MEEmiREl) HK$23,000,000 (Notes (i) and (ii))
HE T, BB A& 423,000,000/ 7T TR XS

(BaE() % i)



32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33.

Notes:

i) JbtRJEE and FEFAILE are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

i) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Law.

i) dEFJEZ is indirectly held by the Company through contractual arrangements by the

registered owners of the subsidiary.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

iz -

) ERIEEREBRERNPEKLZARAF -

32. TEMBARZHEEE)

FAREARAR FR2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020
BE-Z-ZFNA=1+HLEE

i) REFEEEIMAIMEBERLE-

i) ERIEBEBARFEBEMBRARTZEMAEBATLZ
BRLHRERE -

33. RARMBMRRE

REFBRRGD ARB M BHRRNRREFEEESHESIN

Company and the movements in its reserves is set out below: T
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHBARZZE =* =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TERTERER 7 7
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A RIFUAE 33(a) 292,652 293,975
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRLIES 168 41
292,827 294,023
Current liabilities RENEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A R FRIA 33(a) 4,900 4,900
Accruals and deposits received HibfEFRIE R E SRS 1,217 1,260
6,117 6,160
Net current assets REBEEFE 286,710 287,863
NET ASSETS EERE 286,710 287,863
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital (&N 7,688 7,688
Reserves e 33(b) 279,022 280,175
TOTAL EQUITY R 286,710 287,863

*

The statement of financial position was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Represent amounts less than HK$1,000.

Directors on 25 August 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Vong Tat leong David
HES
Director

BE

* IS F/N,0007E T

il T EFAREE

Xu Siping
Director

4

BB RBEFER —F_FF A+ HAMERRES
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(@) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

33. RAFBBMRRETE)

(a) FEMR FEAHIE R RFE
FERFIR AEER R B RAREREE -

(b) Movement of reserves (b) REZE
Capital
redemption Accumulated
Share premium reserve losses Total
RGRE BEXFEE #E RitEBE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FAET FAET FAET
At 1 May 2018 RZE-—N\FRA—H 611,780 262 (290,609) 321,433
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEEEBBEREABIBEE
for the year - - (41,258) (41,258)
At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 RZZ-NFUNA=+AK
—E-NFRAH 611,780 262 (331,867) 280,175
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEEFEREAEKBIBEE
for the year - - (1,153) (1,153)
At 30 April 2020 R-Z-ZFNA=1+H 611,780 262 (333,020) 279,022

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to the events disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following subsequent events:

On 4 August 2020, the Group entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
with an independent third party in relation to the possible acquisition of smart-city property
development rights for certain phases of Manila International Financial Center Headquarters City
Center City, at Manila Bay, the Philippines, incorporating intelligent technologies and ecosystems.
The consideration for the possible acquisition is to be determined by mutual agreement. Such
transaction has not yet been completed up to the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements. Details of the possible acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 4 August 2020.

34, {EHPEREE

BRSGAFBRRA M RE 2 FBIN REBRUTEER

ZENANA ARRE-BBUFE =N UTAER
MRNZFRESE ARFRERA KB EESERES
BHEESRPOANTHORTHE TRE BEBEMERE
ERARZEBATHOYELRE - BEER2REMER
MEREETE BELEZSFAVBRRAL ZRHH AT
B AR 2 B EIIRARF RRA T _2F \AMAZ

Do




CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is set out below:

FAREARAR FR2020
SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BB ERTE

ATOEERR 2 ASEBER AN RFE 2B TIBEAEEAR
AERBEZHERIINOT

Year ended 30 April
BZMA=+ALEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EF —ZT-NnEF - N\F T —+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T FAET FExT FA&T
Revenue Wz 34,023 33,953 23,541 12,767 11,967
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ADE R, (EE) 9,920 22,258 38,967 (4,727) (19,477)
Income tax FriS i 298 (98) (191) (80) 87
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing NEFREFELLEZEF,
operations (F518) 10,218 22,160 38,776 (4,807) (19,390)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discounted REEREBERIELE 2
operation wHEE) - - - - 27,749
The owners of the Company NAREBA 10,218 22,160 38,776 (4,807) 8,359
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES REBERER
As at 30 April
REA=+H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EC-EF —ET-hF —E-N\F —T—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FAT FHET FHT FAT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 427,030 418,171 417,897 376,260 347,890
TOTAL LIABILITIES Fol=F (35,380 (35,095) (34,130) (34,466) (37,934)
391,650 383,076 383,767 341,794 309,956
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
L/ EZTES

Locations

Ho

Investment properties

REME

10.

1.

12.

13.

14

Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, 9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFEHSRESIT1EIEEE

Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERNEARE SH85EREFSEEHE

Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERENEARE SHGEREF7EI0EBE

Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERNEARE SHTEEREF7EI0ECE

Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BB T @B 15 B R R T 1R 431EDE R 5208357 B

Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau
TP R TR RS B Sl e PI25EA R

Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, 58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEETERAERS-45FE P L2MEAKRBE

Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong
BANBAWE =485 /8 B F6i26025% FEBE AL

Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

BANEAWE R85 /8B F6iE6045% X EEAL

Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

EBNERAME R85 8 AR F6IE6375 (T EEM

Office E, 22/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NEBERE B RREES2ER

FEMN TR & A L B8 2335360655
Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
ER BRI 2 EE S T 4954

Car parking space No. P25 on 1/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB R BE S EE835 SR I E 5 1 B P255R B L

Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost

MRAIIERFERAZEE L RETF

1.

Office A, 17/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BN EBERE B RREES17EAE

Existing use
BEFAR

Residential
=

Residential
F=

Residential
=

Residential
F=

Residential

F=x

Residential
F=E

Commercial

[CES

Residential

Tz

Residential

F=E

Residential

F=x

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[CES

Term of lease

HEHR

Medium term

]

Medium term

]

Medium term

]

Medium term

]

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

]

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T
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